
 

 

 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Housing Panel (Panel of the 
Scrutiny Committee) 
 
 
 

Date: Wednesday 10 December 2014 

Time: 4.15 pm 

Place: Plowman Room - Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Andrew Brown 

Telephone: 01865 252230 

Email: abrown2@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the 
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting. 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall 
Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Housing Panel (Panel of the Scrutiny Committee) 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Sam Hollick  
  

Councillor Gill Sanders 
 

 Councillor Elizabeth Wade  

 Linda Hill Co-optee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES 

 

 

 The Quorum for this Panel is three and substitutes are allowed. 

 

 

2 HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

 

1 - 2 

 Officer: Andrew Brown, Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 01865 252230 
Email: abrown2@oxford.gov.uk 
 
For the Housing Panel to review and note its work programme. 

 

 

3 ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY - COUNCIL HOUSING STOCK 

 

3 - 74 

 Contact Officer: Martin Shaw, Interim Project Manager 
Tel: 01865 252775 
Email: mshaw2@oxford.gov.uk 
 

Background Information 

 
The adoption of the Asset Management Strategy will determine 
decisions for the Council’s Housing Stock. 
 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
This is a substantial strategy document that balances priorities for 
the coming years and has significant implications. 
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Martin Shaw and Stephen Clarke, Head of Housing, have been 
invited to take questions and support the Panel in its discussion. 
 

 

 

 

4 OLDER PERSONS HOUSING REVIEW 

 

75 - 94 

 Contact Officer: Allison Dalton 
Tel: 01865 252801 
Email: adalton@oxford.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

Background Information 

 
The City Council is planning to undertake an older persons housing 
review. 
 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
To update the Panel on this review. 
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Allison Dalton has been invited to support the Panel in its discussion. 
 

 

 

5 NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

95 - 98 

 For the Panel to note the notes of its meeting on 9 October 2014. 

 

 

6 DATE OF  FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

 

 15 January 2015 (Budget Review - housing) 
22 January 2015 
4 February 2015 
24 March 2015 

 

 



 

DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or 
himself but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as 
husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



2 December 2014 

Housing Panel work programme 2014-15 
 

Items for Housing Panel meetings 
 

Suggested Topic Suggested approach / area(s) for focus 

Performance monitoring  Regular monitoring of performance measures for Estates Regeneration, Housing Supply and 
Welfare Reform and Housing Crisis. 

Housing Strategy Review headline priorities and sought outcomes in Housing Strategy at draft stage, and the action 
plan post-consultation. 

Increasing the provision of 
affordable housing 

Monitoring of performance measures; scrutiny of the Housing Business Plan and the Housing 
Strategy; consider alternative options e.g. pre-fabs and ‘pods’; possible review topic. 

Homelessness Monitoring of performance measures; scrutiny of the Housing Business Plan and Housing Strategy; 
pre-scrutiny of homelessness grant allocations; possible review topics. 

Rent arrears Monitoring of performance measures; bi-annual update reports. 

STAR survey results Monitoring of results. 

Tackling under-occupancy  Report on efforts to tackle under-occupancy; consider in rent arrears reports. 

Oxford Standard To receive a progress update on the delivery of the Oxford Standard through the Asset 
Management Strategy and Action Plan, including an update on work to improve thermal efficiency in 
the Council’s housing stock. 

Private sector licencing  Update report on the scheme; consider views of landlords and PRS tenants. 

Unlawful dwellings A report on the City Council’s approach to tackling illegal dwellings e.g. beds in sheds, given that 
funding ends in April 2015. 

Repairs exemptions policy To scrutinise proposed changes to the current policy. 

De-designation of 40+ 
accommodation 

Update report on the final phase of de-designating 40+ accommodation (expected in April 15). 

Sheltered Housing To contribute to and monitor the customer profiling survey of residents in sheltered accommodation 
and how this data should inform future provision. 

Fuel Poverty To receive an update on the City Council’s approach to the issue of Fuel Poverty. 
Commission/review research; consider during other items; possible review topic. 

Supporting people  Verbal updates on the joint commissioning of housing support services. 

 

1

A
genda Item

 2



Draft Housing Panel Agenda Schedules 
 

Date, room and time Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

10 December, Plowman 
Room, 5pm 

1. Asset Management Strategy 
 

2. Sheltered Housing 

Stephen Clarke 
 
Gary Parsons; Alison Dalton 
 

22 January 2015, 
Plowman Room, 5pm 

1. Star Survey Results 
 

2. Fuel Poverty 
 

3. Aids and Adaptions Policy (pre-scrutiny) 
 

4. Exemption policy (pre-scrutiny) 
 

Gary Parsons 
 
Deborah Haynes 
 
Stephen Clarke 
 
Gary Parsons; Nicola Griffiths 
 

4 February 2015, St 
Aldate’s Room, 5.30pm 

1. Unlawful dwellings 
 

2. Tackling under-occupancy 
 

Ian Wright 
 
Bill Graves 

24 March 2015, Judges 
Room, 5pm 

Items TBC  

 
 

Meetings closed to the public: 
 

Date, room and time Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

15 January 2015, 
Plowman Room, 
5.30pm  

1. Budget Scrutiny - Housing   
 

Cllrs Turner &Seamons; Stephen 
Clarke 
 

 

2



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
To: City Executive Board  
 
Date: 17 December 2014    

 
Report of:  Head of Housing and Property Services  
 
Title of Report:  Housing Asset Management Strategy 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To seek approval for the adoption of the Asset 
Management Strategy and associated action plan for Oxford City 
Council’shousing stock. 
          
Key decision Yes 
 
Executive lead member: Councillor Seamons, Executive Member for 
Housing and Estate Regeneration 
 
Policy Framework:  
 
Recommendations: That the City Executive Board:  
 
1.Agree the draftstrategy and associated action plan for consultation. 
2. Include the Housing Asset Management Strategy as part of the Council’s 
Policy Framework. 
 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 Asset Management Strategy 
Appendix 2 Risk Register 
Appendix 3 Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Background 
 

1. The City Council’s Asset Management Strategy sets out the  practices 
and principles that the City Council will apply to ensure that its housing 
stock meets current and future needs, including planning for 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



investment in repair and improvements, and reviewing and changing 
the portfolio to match local circumstances.   

 
2.  The strategy also takes a longer view, making sure that there are 

systems in place that can guide more major investment decisions to 
optimise the use of the stock in meeting future housing needs. 

 
3. The strategy and the investment programmes that underpin it  

alsocontribute to wider corporate objectives such as employment and 
training, building stronger communities and area and estate 
regeneration. 
 

4. One of the asset management objectives is to raise the standards of 
our housing stock with the adoption and delivery of an Oxford 

Standardwhich is a higher than the  ‘Decent Homes standard ‘ which 
will mean we retain decent homes compliancy ( a statutory 
requirement), and also achieve affordable warmth and other increased 
standards relating to the key  physical elements of what makes a great 
place to live. 

 
5. A key aspect of the strategy is to reflect local needs, and consultation 

was undertaken as part of the development of the strategy to identify 
local priorities.  From the information received affordable warmth and 
external environment have been identified as specific prioritiesby 
tenants.  A scrutiny panel consisting of tenants and members oversaw 
a tenant consultation and the development of the “Oxford Standard”.  
Their report and recommendations arethe subject of a separate report 
to CEB. 
 

6. The proposed Asset Management Strategy (AMS) covers a period of 
ten years, with a specific four yearrolling action plan. 

 
7. The development of the investment programmes will be undertaken as 

part of our Housing Revenue Account business planning process and 
this has been included in our budget planning for 15/16 going forward, 
the detail of which is contained within the budget report elsewhere on 
this CEB agenda. 

 
Legal Issues 
 

8. There is a regulatory requirement to maintain compliance with Decent 
Homes Standard.  The proposed strategy ensures that this standard 
will continue to be met. 

 
Financial Issues 
 

9. Additional investment to support the delivery of the objectives of the 
strategy are contained within the draft HRA business plan which is part 
of the Council’s overall budget proposals. 

 

4



 
Environmental Impact 
 

10. Co-ordinated investment in estate improvements should result in a 
more effective use of available resources taking into account resident 
requirements and priorities. 

 
11. Where appropriate investment in the estate environment will be co-

ordinated with regeneration activity of the Council. 
 
Level of Risk  
 

12. The risk register is included in appendix 2 
 

Equalities Impact 
 

13. An initial equality impact assessment is included in appendix 3 
 

 
 
 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name Martin Shaw 
Job title Interim Property Services Manager 
Service Area / Housing and Property Services 
Tel:  01865 252775  e-mail:  mshaw2@oxford.gov.uk 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
– HOUSING PORTFOLIO 

2014 - 2023 

7



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

CONTENTS 
 
 
Executive Summary 

 
 
1.0 CONTEXT 

 
 

1.1 Background 
1.2 Asset Management 
1.3 Supporting documentation 
1.4 Value for Money 
1.5 Limitations 

 
2.0 SUPPLY AND DEMAND 

 
 

2.1 Stock description 
2.2 Stock condition 
2.3 Housing needs 
2.4 Leasehold units 
2.5 Portfolio Performance 
2.6 Portfolio ‘Mix’ 

 
3.0 ASSET MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 

 
 

3.1 The National context 
3.2 The Local Authority corporate objectives 
3.3 Objectives of OCC 
3.4 Employment Opportunities 
3.5 Asset Management Strategy Priorities 

 
4.0 STANDARDS 

 
 

4.1 Decent Homes Standard 
4.2 Oxford Standard 
4.3 Fire Risk Assessments and associated works 
4.4 Mechanical & Electrical 

 
5.0 PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 

 
 

5.1 Portfolio performance 
5.2 Neighbourhood plans 
5.3 Options appraisals 

 
6.0 STOCK INVESTMENT PLANNING 

 
 

6.1 Investment forecasts 

8



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

6.2 Planned programmes 
6.3 Value for money 

 
7.0 DELIVERING THE STRATEGY 

 
 

7.1 Data management 
7.2 Information systems 
7.3 Service standards 
7.4 Resident involvement 
7.5 Responsive and void repairs 
7.6 Responsibilities 

 
8.0 APPENDICES 

 
 
Appendix One Action plan 
Appendix Two Decent Homes Standard & the Oxford Standard 
Appendix Three Sustainability / Options Appraisal Model 
Appendix Four Fuel Poverty: a framework for future action 

9



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 
 

Glossary of terms  

AMISP 
AMS 
AR 
BP (OCC) 
CLG 
Decent Homes 
DHS 
DDA 
DFG 
EHCS 
EPC 
FRAs 
HCA 
HHSRS 
HECA 
ICT 
JIT KPI 
MRA 
M&E 
OCC 
QA 
RDSAP 
RTB 
SOR 
SMT 
SLA 
SAMP 
SAP 
VFM 

Asset management information systems plan 
Asset Management Strategy 
Asbestos Register 
OCC Business Plan 
Department of Communities and Local Government 
Target standard set by CLG 
Decent Homes Standard 
Disabled Discrimination Act 
Disabled facilities grant 
English House Condition Survey 
Energy Performance Certificate 
Fire Risk Assessments 
Homes & Communities Agency 
Housing Health and Safety Rating System 
Home Energy Conservation Act 
Information and communication technology 
Just in time 
Key performance indicator 
Major repair allowance 
Mechanical & Electrical building components 
Oxford City Council 
Quality audit 
See SAP. Reduced Data SAP is required to support EPCs 
Right to buy 
Schedule of rates 
Senior management team 
Service Level Agreement 
Specialist asset management package 
Standard assessment procedure (energy efficiency) 
Value For Money 

10



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

- i -  

 

 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
CONTEXT 

 
This  Asset  Management  Strategy  (AMS)  has  been  prepared  by  Oxford  City  Council 
(OCC). 

 
The immediate remit of OCC is to deliver an affordable and comprehensive repairs, 
maintenance and improvement service to the Housing portfolio.  However, we have a 
responsibility to take a longer view, making sure that there are systems in place that can 
guide investment decisions in support of future investment programmes.  For this reason, 
our Asset Management Strategy (AMS) covers a period of ten years, with a specific four 
year action plan. 

 
Definition of asset management 

 
Asset management is the management of physical assets to meet service and financial 
objectives.  By applying good asset management practices and principles OCC will ensure 
that its housing stock meets current and future needs, including planning for investment in 
repair and improvements, and reviewing and changing the portfolio to match local 
circumstances. 

 
Purpose of AMS 

 
OCC’s (AMS) provides the framework to develop detailed planned maintenance 
programmes that deliver commitments made in our business plan. 

 
The AMS provides the guiding principles of all key asset management decisions. In more 
detail, this includes: 

 
Asset management objectives 

 
OCC' asset management objectives are: 

 
• To deliver an Oxford Standard that means we retain decent homes compliancy, 

achieve affordable warmth, meet identified needs, and contribute to community 
development. 

• To manage the stock portfolio, in terms not just of age, condition and standard, 
but also as part of a process of assessment to guide policies of re-investment to 
meet the needs of current and future tenants. 

• To  support  our  corporate  priorities  through  investment  plans  that  reflect  the 
agreed allocation of resources for re-investment and will contribute to sustainable 
neighbourhoods. 

11



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

- ii -  

 

 
 
 
 
 
ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE OBJECTIVES 

Standards 

To deliver homes that meet agreed standards the requirements are: 
 
• Up-to-date and reliable data to show that all homes achieve and sustain the decent 

homes standard (4.1). 
• An Oxford Standard which is option appraised, consulted upon, discussed, costed 

and agreed (4.2) 
•        Compliance with statutory testing / inspection regimes (4.3 & 4.4) 

 
Portfolio management 

 
To manage the stock portfolio in line with OCC's corporate priorities the requirements are: 

 
• A simple approach to portfolio scoring to guide priorities for investment and the need 

for further option appraisal (5.1). 
•        Support for neighbourhood level management plans (5.2). 
• A review of options where costs are high, demand is low, or where there is an 

opportunity to make better use of the assets (5.3). 
 
Investment plans 

 
To support the business plan by delivering affordable investment plans the requirements 
are: 

 
• Thirty-year investment plan forecasts to be based on an up-to-date and reliable 

corporate stock condition database (6.1). 
• Detailed  five-year  planned  programmes  demonstrating  that  the  stock  can  be 

maintained at the agreed standard within budget (6.2). 
•        All work assessed against value for money criteria (6.3). 

 
Data management 

 
To ensure decisions are made on the best possible information, OCC will undertake a 
programme of rolling stock surveys, pre-works surveys, and surveys of void property. 
Work will be undertaken to improve data capture from works programmes.   Data 
management is an important component of programme delivery and OCC understanding 
of the need to manage the stock condition database (7.1). 

 
Information systems 

 
OCC has access to specialist asset management software, CodeMan.  Data from stock 
condition surveys together with the programmed works data, has been migrated into this 
package in order to define works programmes and demonstrate compliance with the 
decent homes target (7.2). 

12



Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

- iii -  

 

 
 
 
Service standards 

 
It is essential that we understand our customers and translate this knowledge into a more 
responsive service.  We will introduce validation checks on the customer satisfaction 
measures collected by contractors, and utilise data from OCC on the use of client profiling 
(7.3). 

 
Resident involvement 

 
Our Resident Involvement Strategy is to ensure residents are at the heart of decisions 
taken in planning, delivering and monitoring our service (7.4). 

 
Equality & Diversity 

 
We intend to use the results of our resident profiling to assist us in shaping the delivery of 
our services to residents and to ensure the skills of residents are used by contractors in 
delivering contracts on the estates. In particular, to include, consulting with residents to 
identify their specific needs, both individually while works are carried out and generally 
through the Oxford Standard work.  We will also utilize the resident profile to assist in 
targeting and prioritising works. 

 
Responsive and void 

 
We have undertaken an end-to-end review of the responsive repair service to simplify 
processes and shape the service to the needs of residents (7.5). 

 
We aim to reduce the time taken to relet voids, and will review approaches which 
encourage tenants to leave their home in a good state of repair, and to undertake relet 
work to an acceptable standard within agree turn-round targets (7.5). 

 
Responsibilities 

 
OCC is responsible for delivering asset management functions across the partnership 
members and will formally review its AMS annually (7.6). 

13



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

1. CONTEXT 
 
1.1 BACKGROUND 

 
 

The AMS specifically concentrates on providing a basis for consistency and 
continuous improvement across the 7785 housing portfolio. 

 
Building on the organisation’s Housing Strategy, this AMS: 

 
•             Has clear links to the objectives of the Housing Strategy, Energy 

Strategy and other interrelated policy documents. 
• Shows how detailed plans are being maintained to meet and retain 

the government's decent homes target based on current and reliable 
stock condition data that can be used to inform stock investment 
priorities. 

• Looks forward, seeking to address the agenda set out in Homes for 
the Future. This report had the objective of everyone to have access 
to a decent home at a price they can afford, in a place where they 
want  to live  and  work. Good quality,  affordable housing  enables 
stable and secure family lives: we are all healthier, happier and 
wealthier when we have decent homes close to schools, healthcare 
and transport links. 

• Shows how we can continue to fund the maintenance of our existing 
stock, to focus investment to support sustainable communities, and 
in  the  future  to  expand  the  stock  of  affordable,  good  quality, 
environmentally friendly housing in places where people want to live. 

 
An AMS must be framed against longer term considerations and thus creates 
the need for a ten year planning ‘horizon’.  We have a responsibility to ensure 
that there are systems in place that can guide investment decisions and 
support the management of future investment programmes. 

 
Additionally we need to take account of what our peers are doing in the areas 
where we operate and ensure that investment is focused in places where the 
stock is likely to meet future demands. 

 
For these reasons the AMS focuses on a four year action plan, which provides 
stability and certainty whilst allowing a comprehensive review opportunity at 
the end of the fourth year. 

 
 
1.2 ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 

 
Asset management is defined as the management of physical assets to meet 
service and financial objectives.   It is concerned with: 

 
• The overall performance of the stock portfolio and the contribution it 

makes to the agreed business plan. 
• The whole life cycle of a property, from the proposal to build, through 

development,  investment  and  maintenance,  to  the  decision  and 
method of disposal if necessary. 

14



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

• The way management and investment can be directed to support 
community development and improve portfolio performance. 

 
The application of good asset management principles will ensure our housing 
stock meets current and future needs.  We need to invest in repairs and 
improvements but, where necessary, change the portfolio to match local 
circumstances. We must: 

 
•             Understand what work is needed. 
•             Where it is needed. 
•             How it is prioritised. 
•             While ensuring we stay within our budgets. 

 
Our AMS shows how we will prepare affordable investment plans, support the 
development of detailed planned maintenance programmes that deliver 
commitments made in our business plan, and provide well maintained homes 
which our tenants judge to be good, and which compare well with those 
provided by the best social landlords. 

 
 
1.3 SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
This AMS has been developed with appropriate linkages to existing OCC strategies and 
policies, for example: 
 
Corporate Plan 2013-17 

Fundamental Service Review – Repairs & Voids 
Business Plan 
Corporate Equality Scheme 2012-2015 
Service Plan 
Repairs and maintenance policy / Handbook 
Housing Strategy 2012-2015 
Corporate Asset Management Plan 2011-2014 
Service standards 
Decent homes delivery plan (maintaining decency) 
Energy Policy (in development at time of writing) 
Financial Inclusion Strategy (in development at time of writing) 
Biodiversity Strategy (in development at time of writing) 

 
1.4 VALUE FOR MONEY 

A key requirement is for all social housing providers to have a clear 
perspective and understanding on the return of the asset base and how this is 
contributing to the delivery of the organisations objectives. In particular, how 
VFM decisions on maintenance and capital investment are informed by robust 
asset information enabling fully informed decision making on whether to hold 
particular stock in its current form, dispose of it to another provider, on the 
open market or conversion of tenure. 

 
This strategy (and other co-dependant strategies) will enable OCC to take 
fully informed asset decisions based on a robust assessment process and by 
bringing together a high level of asset intelligence of the asset base, its 
strengths, limitations and options. This will also include the use of whole life 

15



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

cycle cost modelling enabling the setting off of capital investment against cost 
in use considerations in order to take a strategic value for money perspective. 

 
The approach to performance management will include benchmarking so that 
OCC fully understand it’s asset management related cost drivers, how these 
compare to peers and how this translates into value for money. 

 
1.5 LIMITATIONS 

 

 
Asset management touches on demand for housing, development and 
redevelopment, financial performance, service delivery and value for money. 
Our aim is to address all aspects of asset management that are relevant to 
the proper functioning of OCC, but there is no requirement to include all this 
in a single document. 

 
The focus of our AMS is to identify what is important if corporate objectives 
are to be achieved. This means an emphasis on investment priorities so that 
we can deliver high quality housing and make the best use of our existing 
assets.    In  order  not  to  confuse  this  core  message,  there  are  related 
strategies which are not considered here because they are covered in other 
documents. 

 
Specifically: 

 
• The  delivery  of  responsive  and  cyclical  programmes  are  part  of 

separate policies and procedures.   This does not minimise the 
importance  of  moving  work  from  responsive  to  planned,  or  of 
ensuring that components replaced under responsive works are 
recorded on the stock condition database. 

• The  approach  to  procurement  is  informed  by  the  mechanism  of 
delivery  i.e.  via  Direct  Services.  Clearly  there  are  overlaps  with 
business  planning  functions,  and  we  have  ensured  that  the  two 
strategies are aligned. 

• The Oxford Standard will be dependent on the affordability aspects 
of the Business Plan. 

• Our joint approach with other stakeholders to promote development 
of new housing. 

• Continue to maintain the Decent Homes Standard to all of our 
housing stock. 

16



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

2. SUPPLY AND DEMAND 
 
2.1 STOCK DESCRIPTION 

 
 

OCC currently manages a stock of 7785 general needs including 620 
leasehold  /freehold  homes.     These  are  self-contained  units,  plus  300 
sheltered units. 

 
The profile of the tenanted housing stock by archetype is shown in the 
following table: 

 
Bedsit 1 
Bungalow 326 

  Flat 3413 
Hostel 40 
House 3920 
Maisonette 1 
Rtb Shared Ownership - 
House 

 
2 

Sheltered 
Accommodation 

 
51 

New Development 31 
Total 7785 

 
There are a number of properties of non-traditional construction, as shown 
below: 

 
Type Total 
Airey 18 
Cornish 92 
Other 495 
Reema Hollow Panel 2 
Timber Frame 324 
Trusteel 154 
Wimpey No Fines 81 
Total 1166 

 
Related assets 

 
In  addition  to  the  above,  OCC  owns  or  manages  2271  garages,  58 
commercial units and communal areas / community units.   OCC is also 
responsible  for  un-adopted  roads  and  footpaths  on  estates  and  these 
liabilities are taken into account within our investment budgets. 

 
2.2 STOCK CONDITION 

 

 
Stock condition survey 

 
A fully stratified and statistically significant stock condition survey was 
completed in 2013/14 by Michael Dyson Associates. This provides an up to 
date perspective of the housing stock in terms of profile and liabilities. The 
general conclusion of the survey is, that the stock has been well maintained 

17



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

and is currently fit for its purpose (ie, works identified can be attributed largely 
to an ageing stock as opposed to any unique factor). 

 
In  the  above  survey,  6774  properties  out  of  a  total  stock  of  7785 were 
surveyed giving a survey sample of 87%. 

 
This sample is statistically significant to gain an accurate picture of our stock 
and enable us to agree our strategic direction as well as plan future works 
programmes. 

 
The 1039 properties not surveyed due to “no access” will be picked up in the 
2015/16 cycle of surveys. 

 
The survey collected data to determine the following: 

 
1.  Current position against Decent Homes 
2.  Immediate expenditure required to bring all homes within the Decent Homes 

Standard 
3.  Investment required to maintain homes over the next 30 years 
4.  The energy performance of the housing stock 

 
The information from the survey will be used to inform the future housing 
asset strategy of the Council. 

 
However the stock condition survey identified a number of issues regarding 
property condition: 

 
• The survey has identified that 203 properties (2.6% of the stock) currently do 

not meet decent homes.  The sum of £920k has been identified as being 
required to bring these properties up to standard. 

• In addition there are a further 993 properties that have elements that require 
replacing but still meet the Decent Homes Standard (minor element failures 
are permitted under certain defined circumstances and are still classed as 
achieving Decency under the legislation). 

 
Energy performance 

 
Policy context 
The  Climate  Change  Act  2008  committed  the  government  to  an  80% 
reduction in Green House gas emissions by 2050 from 1990.  Approximately 
45% of these emissions are from buildings.  Therefore, OCC has committed 
to a 5% carbon emission reduction year on year from its own estate and 
operations.  As  a  SAP  rating  from  1990  is  not  available,  the  5%  yearly 
reduction is recommended as a target for the housing stock, to be measured 
using RdSAP (Reduced data Standard Assessment Procedure) and adjusted 
where necessary (eg Tower Blocks refurbishment). The RdSAP process was 
introduced  in  2005  as  a  lower  cost  method  of  assessing  the  energy 
performance  of  existing  dwellings.  The  methodology  is  endorsed  by  the 
Building   Research   Establishment   (BRE)   and   accordingly   is   nationally 
recognised as a robust process. 

 
From  April  2016,  private  residential  landlords  will  be  unable  to  refuse  a 
tenant’s reasonable request for consent to energy efficiency improvements, 
where  a  finance  package  (e.g.  Green  Deal  or  the  Energy  Company 

18



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Obligation) is available.  From 2018, it will be unlawful to rent out a residential 
or business premise that does not reach a minimum energy efficiency 
standard, likely to be E rating on the Energy Performance Certificate (Energy 
Act  2011).   As  a  landlord,  OCC  is  preparing  for  this  deadline  now  by 
improving the energy efficiency of the hardest to treat stock. 

 
Fuel poverty is the ability of  residents to afford to heat their homes. Three 
major things have an impact on this: energy prices, the income of tenants and 
the energy efficiency of the home.  In this strategy, the Council is prioritising 
the energy efficiency of its properties in order to increase resilience of tenants 
against the other two factors.  Accordingly we aim to exceed the requirements 
for thermal comfort contained in the Decent Homes Standard, where possible 
whilst assessing options for properties that are ‘harder to treat’. 

 
The  Government  recently  supported  the  move  towards  energy  efficient 
homes by  announcing a new fuel poverty target to ‘ensure that as many fuel 
poor  homes  as  is  reasonably  practicable  achieve  a  minimum  energy 
efficiency standard of Band C, by 2030.’  The Low Income High Cost indicator 
it refers to indicates that fuel poverty is more likely in families in larger homes, 
those paying high energy prices and/or off gas, and those in old dwellings. 
Further details are shown in the appendices to this strategy. 

 
Current performance of the Council 
OCC is required to report on the thermal efficiency of the stock by means of 
national indicators. The average SAP rating in OCC's stock was 68.4 at 31st 

March 2014 with a peer group average for comparison purposes being an 
average of 71. It is also important to focus not only on the average SAP level 
but also on minimum SAP level properties. 

 
The OCC stock falls into the following bands: 

 
 
Rating 

 
SAP 

No. of 
Dwellings 

 
% of Stock 

A 92 - 100 18 0.2 
B 81 - 91 67 0.9 
C 69 - 80 3074 39.7 
D 55 - 68 3142 40.5 
E 39 - 54 395 5.1 
F 21 - 38 40 0.5 
G x1-20 7 0.1 

 

There are a number of planned programmes to improve heating systems, 
insulate properties and provide double glazing and doors.  Most of the ‘quick 
wins’ have been completed and projects to date have included: 

 
• 3,465 cavity wall insulation installations 
• 424 external wall insulation installations 
• 7,369 window replacements with double glazing 
• 3886 gas condensing boilers 
• Centralised biomass system for 72 new Council flats 
• Solar  thermal  (hot  water  heating)  has  been  rolled  out  to  older  person 

bungalows, and 2 flat blocks 
• 40 solar PV installations (generates electricity) 

19



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

The Council is optimising access to external funding for: 
o Maximising insulation and other energy saving measures in housing 

stock in 2014/15 
o Planned  upgrades  of  external  wall  insulation  and  potential  other 

measures on five Tower Blocks over next few years 
 
Future work 

 
Improving energy performance is a key driver of this strategy and dovetailing 
energy measures in association with other asset management projects could 
include: 

o Stock   investment   planning   –   refurbishment   should   maximise 
opportunities for energy efficiency as a more cost effective approach. 

o Data Management –  improving energy performance will require good, 
regularly updated Energy (SAP) data to keep monitoring against 
benchmark. 

o Investment/Planned   Programmes   –   target   energy   related   DHS 
failures. Energy Efficiency programmes needs to form part of the 
budget  programme  –  utilise funding  to make the most of  existing 
budget ascribed to this. 

o Responsive/Void repairs – these can also be ‘trigger points’ for energy 
efficiency works.  Produce checklists to maximise efficiency – i.e. add 
basic insulation/draught proofing, pipe lagging and other energy 
measures. 

Resident involvement is vital and can be used to maximise efficiency of 
systems. This includes controls evaluation, understanding boilers, and 
maintenance requirements. 

 
Targets for the future will be set to increase the average SAP, for the period 
covered by this strategy. We have actively participated in the identification of 
properties requiring energy efficiency improvements and carbon reduction 
measures. As such, this initiative will be one of the guiding principles           of 
targeting our investment. 

 
The focus however will be on improving the SAP rating of the F and G rated 
property (i.e. SAP < 38) to ensure they are prioritised whenever possible to 
do  so  in  terms  of   investment  works  to  improve  the  overall  energy 
performance. This is particularly important as properties within bands F and G 
will not be able to be relet after 2018 until a SAP level within band E is 
obtained. 

 
Renewable energy 

 
Whilst a ‘fabric first’ approach is the best place to start for optimising building 
energy use, renewables, low carbon heating and lighting (LED) will also be 
considered as a means of reducing fuel poverty and maximising ‘clean’ 
sources of electricity. Broadly this involves the following approach: 

 
• Assessing   feasibility   of   individual   properties   for   low   carbon 

technologies  like  solar  panels  (PV  or  thermal),  biomass  or  heat 
pumps, LED lighting; 

• Yearly updates and consideration of the financial case and benefits for 
each (eg Feed in tariffs for solar PV and Renewable Heat Incentive for 
solar thermal, biomass, heat pumps etc); 

20



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

extreamly 

General reg 
 

General 
needs Sheltered TOTAL 

Housing Assoc Transfer reg 
 

General 
needs Sheltered TOTAL 

OCC Transfer reg 
 

General 
needs Sheltered TOTAL 

Total Housing reg 
 

General 
needs Sheltered* TOTAL 

1240 57 1297 

930 930 

343 343 

85 85 

35 35 

2633 57 2690 

120 26 146 

129 1 130 

90 90 

24 24 

6 6 

369 27 396 

234 42 276 

240 4 244 

168 168 

41 41 

14 14 

697 46 743 

1594 125 1719 

1299 5 1304 

601 0 601 

150 0 150 

55 0 55 

3699 130 3829 
 

 
 
 

• Working with tenants to ensure they understand the new technologies 
and use them appropriately and to maximum potential. 

 
Asbestos 

 
All common areas have been the subject of a Management / Refurbishment & 
Demolition asbestos surveys to (HS[G]264). The data is held in a specialist 
asbestos register and administered by our asset management team. OCC 
has a legal duty to have an Asbestos Management Plan, which contains our 
strategy on establishing and maintaining a process of asbestos control. 

 

 
 

Decent Homes Standard 
 

In England all social housing landlords have a duty to achieve and maintain 
the Decent Homes Standard. As the DHS programme is based on life cycle 
renewals (in part), careful attention is required to maintain full compliance. 
Properties  that  will  become  non  decent  in  the  next  three  years,  if  no 
proactive investment is undertaken, are shown below: 

 
Sp. 

 
 

Year 
 

Number Non-Decent 
 

% Non-Decent 
 

2014/15 993 12.7 
 

2015/16 
 

1526 
 

19.6 
 

2016/17 1644 21.1 
 

2.3 HOUSING NEED 
 

 
OCC operates in an extremely bouyant housing market. Demand for OCCs 
properties remains high. There are no particular parts of the housing portfolio 
that would be classified as ‘hard to let’. 

 
A summary of housing need is provided below: 

 

 
2013/14 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

OCC properties let 37 25 24 39 25 36 29 25 28 25 24  
of which to OCC transfer applicants 10 4 9 12 7 11 8 6 6 5 9  

No on housing reg. 5414 5283 4752 n/a 4759 4845 4891 4448 4266 3974 3796 3829 

 
 
 
 

Minimum bed need 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5+ 

21



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

*Applicant has been assessed as eligible for sheltered accommodation 
 

Whilt there are no existing plans for wholescale estate regeneration schemes 
there are opportunities for new development sites based upon existing sites. 
A detailed appraisal process for identification is undertaken. 

 
2.4 LEASEHOLDER PROPERTY 

 

 
Approximately 3.9% of the stock has been sold on a leasehold basis as a 
result of the right to buy initiative. 

 
OCC retains responsibility for managing the external repair of blocks and 
communal  services  containing  leasehold  dwellings  and  leaseholders  are 
liable for a proportion of the costs.  Leaseholders can challenge the need to 
undertake works, which could slow the progression of the project and can 
frustrate the process when a multitude of investment needs are found that 
need to be procured jointly. This has sometimes proved a hurdle when 
undertaking major works in blocks where there are leasehold flats for other 
landlords. Experience to date from a significant number of landlords and 
managing agents has shown that recovery of leaseholder contributions can 
be demanding and are open to challenge particularly on definitions of work 
i.e. repairs –v- improve. 

 
OCC recognises it needs to proactively engage with leaseholders as part of 
the appraisal process so that meaningful dialogues can be entered into. OCC 
takes this stance not only in recognition of the legal duty but as a responsible 
landlord. 

 
In developing programmes of works, consideration to mitigating the impact of 
leaseholder consultation will be given. In particular the packaging of 
programmes of work. Consideration and reference to the outcomes of 
Leasehold Valuation Tribunals will help in gauging if proposed programmes 
are likely to be considered a repair or if an element of improvement may be 
considered. 

 
2.5 PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 

 

 
Asset management requires a methodology for establishing investment 
priorities  and  OCC  has  carried  out  a  review  of  its  housing  stock.  That 
appraisal identifies a number of inherent issues with certain property types or 
certain  units.  Examples  of  these  are  damp,  cold-bridging  and  roofing 
problems.    This process is a useful model to use for particular 
schemes/estates  to  identify  whether  or  not  they  have  a  viable  future. 
Indicators of whether the properties should be appraised include: 

 
• High turnover of tenancies (churning) 
• Long standing void properties 
• Increased complaints 
• Increased /demanding management issues (ASB, arrears etc.) 
• Increased demand for reactive maintenance 
• Disrepair claims 

22



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
2.6 PORTFOLIO ‘MIX’ 

 

 
Having the optimal Portfolio mix is essential in delivering the targets and 
objectives  of  the  business  plan  and  this  strategy.  A  key  strategy  going 
forwards is matching supply –v- demand. This will need to address: 

 
• Over occupation 
• Under occupation 
• Having less bedsit stock 
• Reflecting the needs of the Housing Needs Survey 

 
The  need for  scheme  or  estate  based  option  appraisal  will  be  identified 
through work on portfolio performance and mix.  However, the immediate 
priorities for option appraisal are: 

 
• Holistic stock wide perspective via the first stage assessment 
• Regeneration 
• Land and related assets 
• Remodelling and disposal 
• Housing needs 
• Rationalisation and reconfiguration 

23



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

3. ASSET MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 
 
3.1 THE NATIONAL CONTEXT 

 

 
While the immediate priority for OCC is the maintaining its decent homes 
investment programme, the 'Homes for the future' sets a new agenda in terms 
of more homes, more affordable homes and homes that are well designed, 
greener, and linked to good schools, transport and health care.  Our AMS is 
therefore focused not just on the existing stock.  It seeks to take into account 
the surrounding environment, looking at what is sustainable, and what needs 
to   be   done   to   support   communities   and   homes   that   meet   higher 
environmental standards. 

 
 
3.2 THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 

 
 

The local authorities’ vision for housing is for more affordable, high-quality 
housing in Oxford. This is essential for the vibrancy of the economy and the 
health and well-being of residents. 

 
There are three basic principles under-pinning the Sustainable Communities 
Strategies: 

 
• Sustainable growth - development and regeneration that creates a 

viable self-sustaining local economy where strategic decisions are 
made considering social, economic and environmental impacts. 

• Narrowing the gap - raising standards in order to reduce disparities 
between other neighbouring boroughs. 

• Assessing  impacts  -  all  partners  will  consider  the  impact  of  key 
decisions in relation to the seven key outcomes listed below. 

 
These seven key outcomes are a commitment to create places: 

 
•             With a thriving local economy and sustainable towns. 
• With a strong and balanced housing market where people choose to 

live. 
•             With high levels of educational achievement. 
•             Where all people have the opportunity for a healthier and longer life. 
•             Where people are safe, confident and proud to live. 
•             For everyone, which value and embraces diversity. 
•             That safeguards the environment. 

 
From this, the housing principles include: 

 
•             Achieving a balanced housing market: 

- Meeting identified needs for affordable housing. 
•             Reducing unfitness and disrepair and delivering decent homes: 

- Improving the condition of the housing stock to ensure fit for 
purpose. 

- To ensure that all social tenants have a decent home. 
• To  prevent  homelessness  and  meeting  the  needs  of  vulnerable 

households: 

24



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

- To tackle homelessness more effectively. 
- To ensure that a range of specialist and supported housing is 

available. 
• Building sustainable communities: 

- To build cohesive communities by meeting the housing needs 
and aspirations of all communities. 

- To  tackle  social  exclusion  through  neighbourhood  renewal 
action on a broad basis. 

- Sustainability, quality and design. 
 
 
3.3 OBJECTIVES OF OCC 

 

 
OCC is addressing five key issues to meet housing need in Oxford: 

 
1.  Building new homes 
2.  Providing a high-quality landlord service 
3.  Improving standards in the private rented sector 
4.  Reducing and preventing homelessness 
5.  Piloting Direct Payments and Universal Credit 

 
In achieving these objectives, the following values which govern the way in 
which we work: 

 
• Service excellence - striving to deliver excellent value for money 

services for all our customers. 
• Valuing one another - treating everybody with respect, fairness and 

honesty, appreciating diverse needs and expectations. 
• Trust - earning trust by being open, honest and doing what we say. 
• Inspiring  people  -  creating  an  environment  that  encourages  and 

empowers ambition, aspiration and achievement. 
• Excellence in business - being professional, commercially aware and 

responsible in all that we do. 
 
3.4 EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

 

 
The investment and ongoing maintenance into the housing stock also enables 
a further contribution to the corporate objective of Improving the Skills of the 
Workforce. 

 
By allocating £50,000 each year for two years to provide ten new 
apprenticeships within the Council’s own workforce and looking at ways to 
extend the arrangement into future years. 

 
For external contracts, we will: 

 
• Developing  ‘SMART’  Key  Performance  Indicators  into  our  new 

partnering contracts to measure the use of local labour and local 
supplies; 

• Using  residents  profile  data  to  target  workshops for  employment 
opportunities. 

25



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
3.5 ASSET MANAGEMENT PRIORITIES 

 

 
OCC's approach to asset management will ensure that our housing stock 
meets the current and future needs of customers, while being sustainable and 
affordable.  Our asset management priorities are to improve the quality of 
existing homes and therefore to: 

 
•             Ensure the long term viability and sustainability of our stock. 
•             Maintain and manage the stock to meet current and future needs. 
• To inform the targeting and development of  neighbourhood 

management, environmental improvement and neighbourhood 
enhancement initiatives. 

• To provide a framework to inform decisions on the retention of and 
investment  in  existing  assets,  on  the  sale  of  assets,  and  the 
conversion of assets. 

•             Reduce the costs of maintenance in the longer term. 
•             Tackle fuel poverty. 

 
It follows that our AMS is centred on questions about improving the stock at a 
cost that can be afforded: 

 
Better stock - What are the objectives for stock investment?   What are the 
standards we aim to deliver to meet the goals of sustainable communities 
(safe and secure homes in a quality environment); meet future needs (the life 
time homes agenda); and respond to criteria to achieve environmental 
sustainability.    How  do  we  manage  the  stock  portfolio  to  achieve  our 
objectives of a high quality and attractive stock? 

 
Lower costs - Can the investment requirement be funded?    How can we 
align the investment plan with the business plan and what can we do to 
minimise costs through preventative cyclical programmes once the decent 
homes investment programme has been delivered? 

 
The strategy is a response to these questions, and from it flows the following 
ambitions: 

 
• To deliver an investment standard that mean our homes achieve and 

sustain the decent homes target, achieve affordable warmth, meet 
identified needs, and contribute to community development. 

• To manage the stock portfolio, in terms not just of age, condition 
and standard, but also as part of a process of assessment to guide 
policies  of  reinvestment  to  meet  the  needs  of  current  and  future 
tenants. 

• To support our corporate priorities through investment plans that 
reflect  the  agreed  allocation  of  resources  for  re-investment,  and 
contribute to sustainable neighbourhoods. 

 
The objectives set out above are considered in more detail in Sections Four 
to Six.   This is backed by a delivery plan described in Section Seven, which 
in outline addresses the following questions: 

 
• What do we need to know about the stock and how can we improve 

performance management? 

26



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

•  How are residents involved in defining priorities, standards, managing 
programmes  and evaluating the quality of customer service? 

• Who   is  responsible   for  the  AMS   and   what   are  the   monitoring 
arrangements? 

• What is the action plan? 

27



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

4. STANDARDS 
 

Goal 

To deliver homes that meet the needs of our residents. 

Objectives 

4.1 To achieve and sustain the decent homes standard 
4.2 To develop an affordable Oxford Standard which meets the aspirations of 

our residents can be afforded within our Business Plan. 
4.3 To provide well maintained homes and areas which are the responsibility of 

OCC- including gardens, boundary treatments, parking areas and street 
scene that enhance the feeling of pride in the area, etc. 

Requirements 

4.1 Demonstrate continued and on-going delivery of decent homes. 
4.2 The development of an Oxford Standard (which includes resident 

involvement) to be consulted, discussed, costed and agreed. 
 

The quality and availability of our properties is important to the health and 
wellbeing of our customers. Our current investment strategies will ensure that 
all of our properties are up to the decent, modern standard that our customers 
expect. 

 
Our planned maintenance programmes will deliver significant investment in 
the housing stock to improve standards and to ensure there is a continuing 
demand for properties.  Effective asset management will ensure that this 
programme is financially sustainable. The key elements are: 

 
•             Maintain the decency standard for all properties. 
• Keep homes in good condition beyond this by adopting a strategic, 

long-term  approach to  investment  and  an  intelligent  approach  to 
cyclical  maintenance  aimed  at  maximising  the  life  of  building 
components. 

• Deliver an affordable quality product in an attractive environment, 
complying with current and prospective requirements, particularly in 
terms of affordable warmth and environmental sustainability. 

• Achieving high customer satisfaction and contributing to sustainable 
communities. 

 
 

4.1 DECENT HOMES 
 

 
Our immediate aim is to deliver decent homes within budget and with a high 
level of tenant satisfaction. 

 
To plan the delivery of the decent homes programme and to demonstrate 
continuous DHS compliance, OCC will maintain an up-to-date stock condition 
database.   This will build on the existing sample survey, capturing all pre- 
works inspection data and completions from the works programme. 

28



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

4.1 Demonstrate delivery of decent homes 

Objectives  
Compliance Up-to-date  and  reliable  data  to  show  that  all  homes  meet  the  decent  homes 

standard. 
Tasks  
Data collection Ensure data is collected to demonstrate compliance. 

 
 

4.2 OXFORD STANDARD 
 
 

Our residents will have other aspirations for their homes and will wish to see 
improvements to aspects of estates such as security and environment quality. 

 
We will, in full consultation with the residents revise the current standard to 
match the expectations of our tenants while being affordable within the 
business plan. The Oxford Standard may include: 

 
•             A more ambitious thermal comfort standard. 
•             Accessibility standards for older and disabled people. 
•             Internal noise insulation within and between dwellings. 
• Standards for communal areas and the external environment that 

support  policies  for  sustainable  communities.  (including  boundary 
treatment to gardens) 

 
We will agree an Oxford Standard that reflects local circumstances. This will 
be discussed with residents, aligned with business objectives and be capable 
of being funded by the business plan. 

 
The home 

 
Concerns about affordable warmth and energy efficiency mean that there will 
be a focus on insulation and efficient heating systems. We will take account 
where possible of industry standards. We are committed to improving the 
energy efficiency of the stock and minimising the environmental impact of our 
activities. 

 
Common areas 

 
Internal common areas are an important part of the home environment. 
Upgrading communal areas within blocks is therefore a priority.   Standards 
and expectations have risen since many of the blocks last had any substantial 
investment. Upgrading these areas will not only improve the environment of 
the block but will lead to cost savings on cleaning and maintenance. 

 
The environment 

 
We will continue to review our strategies for improving the external 
environment  of  estates.     We  are  aware  that  the  quality  of  the  local 
environment affects the quality of peoples' lives.  We know that the standard 
of maintenance on our estates is important to residents.  We want to deliver 
the improvements that residents think are priorities, and to involve them in 
this process. 

29



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

We envisage that residents' specific priorities for communal areas and 
environmental works in their own areas will be established through 
neighbourhood consultation.  The mechanism for budgeting is that, in defining 
the aspirational standard, our AMS will forecast the costs associated with 
achieving the proposed Oxford Standard and environmental improvements. 
These forecasts must be fully fundable in the business plan. 

 
 

4.2 Oxford Standard 

Objectives  
Sustainability Include affordability and sustainability as key components of  OCC's criteria for 

assessing stock quality. 
Target standard Guided by corporate objectives, OCC will: 

•  Define aspirational standards. 
•  Agree the standard that can be supported by the business plan. 
•  Agree a delivery timescale. 

Tasks  
Oxford Standard Define an aspirational standard for OCC, including affordable warmth and 

environmental criteria. 
Modelling of costs Assess the costs of the aspirational standard to ensure the standard is fundable by 

the business plan. 
 
 

4.3 FIRE RISK ASSESSMENTS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS 
 

 
Our immediate aim is to maintain ‘suitable and sufficient’ Fire Risk 
Assessments (FRAs) in accordance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 
Order 2005. The outputs of this will be held on a database with a prioritised 
action points. 

 
Action   points  requiring   investment   work   will   be  ‘dovetailed’   with   the 
investment works whenever possible and practical to do so. 

 
4.3 Fire Risk Assessments 

Objectives  
Compliance Up-to-date FRAs and associated action plans for all blocks requiring these 
Tasks  
Data collection Compile the required actions and phase with Investment works when possible to do 

so. 

30



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

4.4 MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL 
 

 
4.4 Mechanical & Electrical 

Objectives  
Compliance Five  yearly  fixed  wire  testing  regime,  as  prescribed  in  the  industry  standard 

published by Institution of Engineering and Technology (IET) Wiring Regulations 
(BS 7671) 
Annual landlord gas safety certificates with 100% on-going compliance 

Tasks  
Data collection Compile the required actions and phase with Investment works when possible to do 

so. 
 
Robust escalation process for potentially non-compliant units 

31



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

5. PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 
 

Goal 

To manage the stock portfolio in line with the business plan, meeting the needs of the 
wider community, demonstrate good stewardship and ensure the stock's long term 
sustainability. 

Objectives 

5.1 To develop our existing approach to portfolio scoring to indicate priorities for 
investment and any need for more detailed option appraisal. 

5.2 Support for neighbourhood level management plans. 
5.3 Review options where demand is low, costs are high, or there is an 

opportunity to make better use of the assets. 
Requirements 

5.1 A measure of portfolio performance which can be kept up to date as a 
reliable guide to investment priorities. 

5.2 Development of our approach to preparing neighbourhood plans. 
5.3 Asset management support for estate regeneration. 
5.4 A review of the opportunities provided by under-used HRA land. 
5.5 Option appraisal for marginal schemes. 
5.6 Strategies aimed at achieving better use of the stock. 

 
Our aim is to ensure that there is a continuing demand for our properties and 
to identify stock that is, or may become, a liability.  Such properties may be a 
drain on resources and best suited for disposal or redevelopment.   It is 
important that we do not continue to invest in properties if there is a question 
about their short to medium term future. 

 
 

5.1 PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 
 
 

OCC   will   develop   an   index,   which   uses   indicators   and   compares 
environmental and socio-economic criteria in order to access scheme viability 
and inform stock investment and disposal policies. 

 

 
 

5.1 Portfolio Performance 

Objectives  
Portfolio 
performance 

Measure on a scheme and area basis. 

Tasks  
Index Develop use of this to better inform portfolio management decisions. 

 
 

5.2 NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS 
 
 

We know that the quality of the estate environment is important, and we will 
consult  with  residents  as  part  of  work  to  agree  the  Oxford  Standard. 

32



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

However, we want to be more ambitious, and link environmental works to 
other aspects of estate or neighbourhood planning. This would encompass: 

 
• Renewal of some of the worst areas of hard and soft landscape, 

aiming to improve the visual impact, design-out crime, reduce 
maintenance costs and improve the sense of safety, well-being and 
ownership. 

• Reviewing the opportunities to provide additional homes on under- 
used land. 

 
We have a scheme investment budget for local determination.  We believe 
that this work  should be linked to neighbourhood or estate based plans. 
These plans would provide a basis for a more coordinated approach to asset 
management, and particularly to recognise that housing management should 
not be undertaken in isolation from investment planning. 

 
A key role of neighbourhood plans is to identify properties that are at risk of 
low  demand  and  to  prepare  action  plans  to  deal  with  them  before  they 
become financial liabilities.   If the stock can achieve target standards at 
reasonable cost, the business plan will provide for coordinated re-investment 
that includes environmental works to secure the long term future of the area. 
Proposals for disposal will be reviewed in terms of the impact on the local 
community. 

 
5.2 Neighbourhood plans 

Objectives  
Develop an 
approach 

Agree an approach to preparing neighbourhood or estate plans 

Monitoring The performance of neighbourhood plans should be monitored, requiring the 
starting assumptions to be recorded. 

Tasks  
Principle Agree that neighbourhood planning is a realistic approach to linking housing 

management, asset management and development. 
Define priorities Agree priorities for neighbourhood plans, informed by estate sustainability scores. 
Development Use option appraisal to identify opportunities for new development. 
Land 
management 

Consider “greening” areas where there are problems due to over density 

 
 

5.3 OPTION APPRAISAL 
 

 
The  need for  scheme  or  estate  based  option  appraisal  will  be  identified 
through work on portfolio performance.  However, the immediate priorities for 
option appraisal are: 

 
• Regeneration 
• Land and related assets 
• Remodelling and disposal 
• Housing needs 
• Rationalisation and reconfiguration 

33



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Land and related assets 
 

To support the housing strategy it is important to undertake a detailed review 
of the re-development potential across all our estates.  ‘Hidden Homes’ is a 
key issue for a number of our peer organisations. 

 
OCC proposes to establish two categories: 

 
• A  review  of  the  potential  for  ‘Hidden  Homes’.  This  involves  the 

identification of redundant or underused spaces on existing Council 
estates and consider the possibility of creating new homes for local 
people; and 

• Permanent  environmental  treatment  where  land  has  no  potential 
alternative use. 

 
We believe that imaginative solutions could increase the number of homes on 
our estates, through remodelling while improving the environment and making 
a positive contribution to the life of the community. 

 
Remodelling and disposal 

 
Remodelling is an option for specific schemes in our ownership. 

 
In general terms, disposal of assets is not a high priority for OCC.  However, 
there are occasions where a scheme may be expensive to maintain and 
delivers little social value. In these circumstances the best option may be 
redevelopment or disposal. We will evaluate these schemes within the OCC 
criteria and in consultation with area representatives. 

 
Better use of the stock 

 
As part of making better use of the housing stock, we will look at ways to 
minimise under-occupancy of the existing stock.   There is logic in a policy 
which encourages movement to more appropriate stock that releases under- 
occupied homes for the use of families.  We will work with representatives to 
develop an under-occupation strategy that will include incentives to assist 
people to move into smaller and more suitable accommodation. 

 
The appraisal model is shown in the appendices. 

 
5.3 Option appraisal 

Objectives  
Regeneration Support development and regeneration plans 
Re-modelling A methodology for evaluating options for individual properties or schemes 
Land Assess the potential of sites. 
Better use Development of an approach to widening housing options. 
Tasks  
Criteria Adopt an approach to option appraisal that takes into account estate regeneration 
Scheme Apply scheme based option appraisal as required 
Land assets As part of investment plans and consultation with tenants on environmental works, 

assess development opportunities offered by sites and under-used land. 
Under-occupancy Prepare a strategy which offers housing options to those who might benefit from 

moving to a more suitable home. 

34



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

6. STOCK INVESTMENT PLANNING 
 

Goal 

To support business planning by delivering investment plans for the existing stock 
that are affordable. 
Objectives 

6.1 Prepare a 30 year investment plan. 
6.2 Carry out a programme of component replacement identified through the 

stock condition survey. 
6.3 Ensure all work is value for money. 
Requirements 

6.1 Investment planning and budgeting. 
6.2 Programme of component replacement planned and costed on a five year 

rolling programme, with the minimum decent homes 100% compliance. 
6.3 Ability to demonstrate improving value for money. 

 
OCC must operate a viable business with adequate resources to meet current 
and future business and financial commitments.  Our business plan needs to 
be informed by asset management information that is reviewed regularly.  Our 
approach to investment planning therefore has the following objectives: 

 
• Improve  the  quality  of  management  information  about  the  nature, 

condition and sustainability of the stock. 
• Provide  reliable  and  detailed  forecasts  of  future  costs  to  support 

business planning. 
•           Show a thirty year investment plan driven by stock condition data. 
• Provide a detailed rolling five year planned programme which builds 

on intelligent timing of component replacement. 
•           Manage the programme to ensure that it is affordable. 
• Obtain value for money, delivering the programme with efficiency to 

the stated timescales. 
• Deliver  the  programme  that  customers  want  within  costs  that  are 

affordable. 
 

Beyond the delivery of immediate decent homes targets the future investment 
requirements and business context must be understood.   Business modelling 
is central to the assessment of options, and the AMS will support this by 
developing capacity to prepare investment plans. 

 
It is essential that we know the level of investment required in the existing 
stock  over  future  years,  and  that  this  investment  can  be  funded.    This 
includes the ability to prepare long-term investment forecasts for the stock; to 
report on decent homes; and to anticipate any widening of the decent homes 
agenda to embrace community and environmental criteria. 

 
The requirement is for an investment plan driven by survey based cost 
forecasts,  together  with  non-survey  costs,  which  represent  a  complete 
estimate of the costs of maintaining all assets in good condition over the 
forecast  period.     To  achieve  this  we  require  up-to-date  and  accurate 

35



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

improvement improvements 

 
 
 

information about the condition of the housing stock.  The foundation for this 
is a programme of pre-works surveys and updating of the database in-line 
with works programmes. 

 
The resultant agreed investment plan, aligned with the business plan, will 
then be translated into a five year rolling planned programme as the basis for 
budgeting and procurement. 

 
 

6.1 INVESTMENT FORECASTS 
 

 
Future planned and programmed improvement work will provide for the 
continuous renewal of components in accordance with the life cycle 
expectations.  The Business Plan has been modelled to finance this on-going 
investment to maintain standards. 

 
The current financial plan includes a thirty year cash flow including  provision 
for major repairs and improvement programmes and the effect of RTB sales. 
The investment plan have been used as the basis for figures in the cash-flow 
forecasts. 

 
Resources have been identified in the Business Plan to meet the need for 
renewals and improvements identified in the stock condition survey.  This 
totals £23,173,133 (exc. fees) over the 5 year plan period. 

 
Table 1 below shows the expenditure identified by the survey over the next 
five years against the budget provision in the business plan. 

 
It can be seen that while the year by year profile varies the overall budget 
provision for the next five years is in line with the spend required to meet 
decent homes. 

 
Table 1 

Financial Year 2014/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 Totals 
Catch Up 
Repairs 

 
920,000 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
920,000 

Decent Homes 
Element 
Renewal 

 
 

2,088,984 

 
 

6,385,893 

 
 

2,677,816 

 
 

592,686 

 
 

10,507,754 

 
 

22,253,133 

Total 3,008,984 6,385,893 2,677,816 592,686 10,507,754 23,173,133 
       
Business Plan 
Budget 

 
5,222,310 

 
4,909,260 

 
4,701,510 

 
4,493,260 

 
4,493,260 

 
23,819,600 

 
Variance + - 

 
2,213,326 

- 
1,476,633 

 
2,023,694 

 
3,900,574 

 
-6,014,494 

 
646,467 

 
Notes: 

 
1. This limited top-level analysis confirms the previous financial projections for meeting Decent Homes and 

works programmes to date have addressed on-going compliance with Decent Homes. 
2. Adjustments will need to be made for expenditure on the tower blocks as the Decent Homes works will be 

covered in the major tower block project. 
3. The year on year programme will be adjusted to smooth out spend over the five year period. 
4. The expenditure identified includes the replacement of all elements at the time of life expiry e.g. Kitchens 

20 years, Bathrooms 30 years. 

36



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

The Council is investing £5 million in estates enhancement and regeneration 
over the coming five years which is likely to significantly address these repairs 
although further analysis is required to confirm this. 

 
 
 

Table 2 shows other repairs and planned maintenance items identified by the 
survey: 

 
Table 2 

Other repairs 
(not DHS) 

 
£440,224 

 
£1,015,827 

 
£516,638 

 
£107,497 

 
£4,021,926 

 
£6,102,112 

 
These repairs do not contribute to the potential failure of dwellings against 
decent homes.  Four million pounds (Approx. 60%) of this expenditure relates 
to external area works such as walls, boundaries and paving. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The current investment plan includes for the cost of maintaining the stock in a 
decent condition.  Any additional costs associated with achieving a higher 
aspirational  standard  will  be  included  in  subsequent  work  and  where 
affordable will form part of our business plan. 

 
Schedule of rate assumptions will be reviewed annually, and an annual 
investment plan provided as an input to the business plan. This annual review 
will look at the impact of new data, completed works, revised life cycle 
assumptions, any re-profiling of works, and the impact of any redevelopment 
proposals.  It is essential that asset management plans are reflected in an 
investment plan that in turn is fundable by the business plan.  If our business 
plan requires flexibility in the investment plan, this must be translated into a 
revised AMS. 

 
The Energy Policy will be aligned with the Asset Management Strategy and 
Housing Strategy in order to form a cohesive and joined-up approach.  It also 
has links with the Financial Inclusion Strategy for actions addressing fuel 
poverty and processes/prioritisation within it will utilise data from the Stock 
Condition Survey. This is a key consideration in investment planning and 
budgeting. 

 
6.1 Investment planning and budgeting 

Objectives  
Investment plan OCC has a strategic planning requirement for maintenance cost forecast over 30 

years, at whole stock and scheme level, with the ability to report on main 
components. The purpose is to see trends and to support business planning. 

Business plan The investment plan will feed into business plans with a clear audit trail. The 
investment plan will report on the costs of the whole stock, in a consistent way. 
Reporting will extend to non-survey costs. Related assets and leasehold properties 
will be included. 

Non-survey costs OCC will prepare investment plans in a format that includes budget forecasts for 
responsive, void and cyclical works, as well as for contingent works. 

Energy 
Performance 

To maximise the energy efficiency and minimise fuel poverty in OCC’s housing 
stock 

Tasks  
Resident 
involvement 

Involve residents at the earliest possible stage in the investment planning process 

Investment plan Migrate data into the database, run an investment plan and reconcile against 
earlier reports, 

37



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Review 
assumptions 

Review the schedule of rate and life cycle assumptions annually.   Compare against 
industry  standards  and  peer  group  benchmarks,  and  against  actual  costs 
experienced by OCC. 

Align investment 
plan with 
business plan 

Review OCC's business plan in the light of investment requirements.  Any funding 
gap to be addressed by specific policies. These options will be modelled. 

Energy  
•  Define targets for energy in the housing stock, both in terms of average 

energy  performance  (SAP  rating)  and  poorest  performers  (minimum). 
These can be monitored on a yearly basis. 

•  Determine basic measures that should be applied to all buildings and roll 
out (eg draught proofing, loft insulation). 

•  Optimise efficiency by integrating energy efficiency works with planned and 
reactive maintenance 

•  Consideration of stock for energy generation (renewables) potential 
•  Prioritise larger energy saving works according to 
1.   Energy efficiency measures in terms of cost per carbon saving 
2.   Funding available and a given budget 
3.   Determined fuel poverty criteria 
•  Ensure Technical staff working on building based projects are appropriately 

trained 
•  Ensure  tenant-supporting staff  and tenants are aware and confident in key 

energy issues 
 
 

6.2 PLANNED PROGRAMMES 
 

 
Our requirement is to maintain up-to-date stock condition information in order 
to support the development of a rolling five year investment programme.  Our 
database contains data extrapolated to give whole stock information.    We 
can analyse by estate, linking this to an index of failures by decent homes 
criteria.   This can be done while splitting into internal and external works (to 
fabric) plus communal areas, to identify what work would be done on a purely 
worst-first basis. 

 
There will be a clear audit trail to demonstrate that the planned programme 
supports the AMS.   In turn, the planned programme will demonstrate 
compliance  with  the  decent  homes  standard,  and  the  agreed  Oxford 
Standard.  In the future a rolling budget will be approved on the basis of the 
planned programme. 

 
6.2   Planned programmes 

Objectives  
Preparation of 
planned 
programme 

OCC has a requirement to prepare planned maintenance programmes based on 
survey data, with the ability to see the impact of accelerating or delaying works 
programmes. Reporting will be at unit level, to support aggregation by any grouping 
of units. 

Planned 
programmes 

Decent homes failures will be reflected in the planned programme. It should be 
possible to report on planned programme dates to demonstrate compliance. 

Programme 
priorities 

Publication of an indicative annual programme up to twelve months in advance of 
delivery 

Consultation OCC is committed to consulting with tenants on planned programmes, and to 
providing better information about when programmes will be delivered. This 
requires links between a finalised works programme and customer facing systems 
hosted on the mainframe IT platform 

38



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Tasks  
Preparing five 
year programme 

Prepare detailed five year planned programmes at a local level that demonstrate the 
delivery and sustainability of decent homes. 

Coordination Hold the proposed planned programme on the mainframe so that corporate 
knowledge is shared. 

 
 

6.3 VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
 

Delivering value for money is a key area for service improvement.   The aim 
to be more efficient means: 

 
• An  intelligent  cyclical  programme  where  preventative  works  are 

undertaken, but not done before the work is necessary. 
• Potential  warranty  and  handover  claims  flagged  and  properly 

actioned. 
• New products identified that minimise maintenance liabilities through 

durability, easier cleaning and resistance to anti-social behaviour. 
• The capacity to analyse repair activity to identify trends and reduce 

responsive and planned costs by intelligent cyclical or preventative 
works. 

• Procuring contracts to ensure work is completed in the most efficient 
way and to the highest standards. 

 
Environmental impact will be a key KPI used to monitor our investment 
programme. We intend to ensure wherever possible that programme waste is 
sorted  on  site. Waste  will  wherever  possible  be  taken  to  local  recycling 
depots.  This not only provides environmental benefits but also reduces the 
cost of waste disposal. 

 
Our investment programme will also be informed from the outset by a 
preventative agenda that aims to maximise the amount of future maintenance 
work that is directed towards planned and programmed activity.   This is not a 
simple shift from responsive to planned.  We will develop approaches which 
aim to extend the life of building components through intelligent planned 
repairs.    This will be linked to our cyclical programme.  The objective is to 
extend the life cycle of key components without seeing an offsetting rise in 
responsive repairs. 

 

 
 

6.3 Value for money 

Objectives  
Benchmarking Verify that all planned programmes are delivering value for money. 
Preventative 
strategies 

To undertake more work as planned programmes, reducing the proportion or 
responsive repairs, but not replacing components before the end of their useful life. 

Reducing delivery 
costs 

To lower end-to-end service delivery costs by doing the right things right first time 
and cutting out the costs of doing what is unnecessary. 

Tasks  
Benchmarking Establish a framework to verify that packaged planned works are achieving better 

value for money than responsive repairs. 
Maintenance cost 
analysis 

Develop a stronger understanding of the total costs of maintenance activity by 
monitoring maintenance costs in use for major components. 

Cyclical Develop the programme in more detail, linked to protocols which define repair or 

39



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

programmes replace decisions. Plan the monitoring of these programmes to test that they deliver 
genuine value for money by delaying major works without increasing the cost of 
responsive repairs. Support this by establishing automatic reports that can track 
responsive repairs trends by area and components. 

Handover 
procedure 

Implement a handover procedure to ensure that outstanding defects are resolved by 
the planned maintenance contract and do not become responsive repairs. 

Demand Analyse the spread of demand for responsive repairs (by area, type of works and 
customer characteristics). Review ways in which the demand for small value non- 
urgent work might be better managed. 

40



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 

7. DELIVERING THE STRATEGY 
 

Sections 4-6 of this strategy focused on how we can improve our housing 
stock at a cost that we can afford.   This means defining the standard, 
managing the portfolio and improving our ability to prepare investment plans. 
In order to achieve these ambitions and deliver the strategy there are a 
number of related tasks that need attention. These are discussed below.  The 
order in which they are presented does not imply any particular priority. 

 
 
7.1 DATA MANAGEMENT 

 

 
Stock  condition  surveys  have  been  undertaken and  it  is  the  intention to 
update stock condition data to a minimum of 20% stock each year. Building 
upon these surveys, our policy is to move to effective 100% real data through: 

 
• A rolling programme of surveys on approximately 20% of the stock, 

linked to the cyclical programme and undertaken by our appointed 
consultants. 

• Pre-works  surveys  as  an  important  opportunity  to  identify  the 
remaining life of elements that will not be replaced. 

•             Surveys of void property. 
•             Data capture from works programmes. 
•             Data capture from responsive repairs reviews. 

 
Satisfaction data is being collected to measure the performance of service 
delivery.  It is part of the responsive repairs process and is an integral part of 
the planned programme, through contractors' data validated by OCC.   We 
also record tenant's views about the quality of the void property at the start of 
a tenancy.    We will make sure that this data is used to improve service 
performance, and by linking it to better data about tenant characteristics this 
supports our approach to customer profiling. 

 
We understand the need to manage the stock condition database and to 
continuously improve its quality.  Data management is a crucial function. 
Without the proper skills and staffing the quality of data will decline, and what 
is there will not be used.  The only way to make decisions on a rational basis 
is  to  be  systematic,  comprehensive  and  proactive  in  the  exploitation  of 
portfolio management techniques. This means combining quality information 
systems  with  good  data  management  and  then  translating  data  into 
information which can be used.  The data management role to be performed 
is to: 

 
• Control the collection and management of good quality, consistent 

data as the basis on which to make decisions about investment 
priorities. 

•           Managing overall data quality. 
• Manage  the  asset  management  software  (including  rates  and  life 

cycles). 
• Preparing  standard  reports  (for  example,  to  ensure  the  proper 

treatment of block and leasehold costs). 

41



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

• Preparing  ah  hoc  reports,  specifically  to  support  investment  and 
business planning, delivery of decent homes and neighbourhood 
reviews. 

 
7.1 Data management 

Objectives  
Rolling surveys Improve the quality of planning data through a programme of rolling surveys 

supplemented by pre-works inspections. 
Works data Works data is captured as part of the management of planned programmes, and 

this data is used to up-date the stock condition database. While computing 
questions tend to take centre stage, the main data problems are procedural: 
ensuring that accurate and timely programme information is returned at unit level. 

Contract 
management 

Timely data requires better communication from contractors about the status of 
individual orders. This raises questions about the data requirements from 
contractors and the extent to which systems are shared. 

Voids The requirements for capturing void works data is similar to that for other works 
programmes. 

Responsive 
repairs 

Though responsive repairs is a very important service to tenants the impact on 
asset management is minor. There are two requirements. First, that any repair 
ordering is informed by information about planned programmes. Second, that 
relevant responsive repairs are captured to update the stock condition database. 

Satisfaction Making better use of satisfaction measurement to understand the pattern of demand 
and to adjust the service to meet different needs. 

Managing data Improve the coverage and quality of data. 
Tasks  
Survey priorities Define the data items to be collected as part of pre-works surveys and link to the 

proposed delivery programme. 
Works data Review the procedure for collecting works data. 
Satisfaction Review of the approach to collecting and analysing data. 
Managing data Define responsibilities for managing the stock condition database and agree 

protocols for data collection and quality control. 
 
 

7.2 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 
 

OCC has access to a specialist asset management package (SAMP), 
CodeMan to which the recent stock survey outputs are being entered into. 

 
The immediate priority has been to reconcile the new database against the 
current stock condition survey forecasts and begin the process of shaping 
more detailed delivery plans.   Beyond this we will contribute to a number of 
related asset management issues which will need to be addressed at local 
level,  but  which  have  implications for  the  partnership  organisations  as  a 
whole. 

 
• To  hold  RDSAP  data  if  required,  the  collection  profile  of  which 

changes in late 2014. 
• Asbestos is currently held in a stand alone data base.  As asbestos 

information is required for works orders, with the mainframe being 
the correct home for the data. 

• Interfaces will be required to the mainframe, and the objectives of 
integration  will  be  revisited  as  part  of  the  asset  management 
software update post conclusion of the stock survey reporting. 

42



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

• To have the ability to interrogate the responsive repair data and 
create trend analysis calculations and predictions which will in turn 
inform future strategic component replacement programmes 

 

 
 

7.2   Asset management information systems 

Objectives  
Shared data All corporate data will be held in the mainframe, including any 

specialist asset management attribute data which has corporate 
relevance (eg decent homes results, SAP scores). 

Planned programmes Information about planned programmes to be visible when ordering 
responsive repairs. 

Gas data Make the best possible corporate use of gas servicing records 
Tasks  
Implementation plan Asset management implementation plan for the migration of data to 

address issues of integration with the mainframe. 
Shared data items As part of the implementation plan, agree attributes to be passed 

between CodeMan and the mainframe. 
Interfaces Robust and performance tested. 
Planned maintenance Define the requirements for managing planned maintenance in 

partnership with the contractors delivering the planned programme. 
Trend analysis Develop a procedure to enable trend analysis of the responsive 

repairs to enable this data to inform future strategies 
 
 
7.3 SERVICE STANDARDS 

 

 
It is essential that we understand our customers and then translate this 
knowledge into more responsive service.  The annual STAR survey of tenants 
provides an insight into how well issues around repairs are dealt with: 

 
• 68%  (the  highest  return)  said  repairs  and  maintenance  was  the 

highest priority service we provide them with 
• 78% had had repairs to their home in the last year. 83% are happy 

with how repairs and maintenance is dealt with. 90% were happy with 
the overall quality of the work. 95% said appointments were kept 

• 69% of tenants had contacted the council about their house in the last 
month.  78%  of  these  contacts  were  about  repairs.  90%  of  them 
phoned us and 7% visited us 

•    64% felt that when they were initially interviewed (by phone or face to 
face) the speed of the repairs service was ‘fair’ or ‘poor’ 

•    Most tenants (58%) aren’t aware of the council’s published service 
standards 

• 50% of tenants have access to the internet at home. 24% are happy to 
be contacted by email but 79% would wish to use telephone. 

 
This  high  level  of  overall  satisfaction  for  repairs  is  confirmed  by  the 
ongoing monitoring of customer satisfaction through the Council’s 
GovMetric system (data from April to December 2012). 

43



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Channel Good Average Poor 
F2F 
Telephone 
Web 

47.4% 21.1% 31.6% 
91.6% 7.3% 1.1% 
16.7% 0.0% 83.3% 

Grand 
Total 

 
90.8% 7.4% 1.7% 

 
In addition, the customer feedback system for monitoring complaints, 
comments and compliments shows that compliments for the service outweigh 
complaints by over 4:1 (data from April to December 2012): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Work Area   
C

om
m

en
t 

  
C

om
pl

im
en

t 

  
St

ag
e 

1 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 

  
St

ag
e 

2 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 

  
St

ag
e 

3 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 

Day to Day Responsive Repairs 
Planned Maintenance 
Surveyors 

312 
2 

624 
4 
1 

108 
14 
16 

7 
1 

7 

Grand Total 314 629 138 8 7 

 
It is important to collect and use customer profiling information as the key to 
performing well on diversity.    Accurate and comprehensive profiling 
information   will   be   used   to   set   targets   and   performance   indicators. 
Information will be available to staff and to contractors where relevant. 

 
Our AMS is supported by a comprehensive repairs and maintenance policy 
which shows what will be delivered, when and how this will be done, and the 
standards to be applied to the measurement of performance. 

 
Improvements will be made to the way we handle and learn from complaints. 
Tenant satisfaction surveys are undertaken following decent homes 
programmes, and we will be more systematic about our approach to new 
lettings surveys. 

 
These mechanisms used together are intended to embed tenant involvement 
in service monitoring and development, using customer satisfaction to drive- 
up standards, and then linking this back to show how customer feedback has 
shaped the service. 

 
7.3 Service standards 

Objectives  
Customer satisfaction Collection of reliable information about service standards. 
Better customer 
information 

Collection and analysis of data to shape service delivery more 
intelligently. 

Better customer feedback Listening to customers, acting on what customers have said, and 
then feeding this back to show how their views have influenced 
service delivery. 

Better use of complaints Not only to resolve complaints but also to demonstrate learning 
where the experience has wider applicability. 

44



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Tasks  
Validation of satisfaction 
scores 

Introduction  of  checks  on  the  satisfaction  ratings  reported  by 
contractors on planned maintenance and responsive repairs 

Service process review Review repair and maintenance processes, looking for simplification 
and quality gains 

Complaints procedure Review  the  repair  and  maintenance  element  within  the  overall 
corporate complaints procedure. 

Training Initiate a continuous training programme on customer care induction 
training, extending it to include contractors. 

Performance indicators Complete a comprehensive review of performance indicators. 
 
 
7.4 RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT 

 
 

Resident involvement forms a very important part of the process of making 
decisions about assets. 

 
Investment in assets should reflect the views expressed by residents in 
Customer Surveys and via other feedback mechanisms.  Residents will be 
involved in investment decisions and specific tenants will be consulted about 
locally applicable proposals and strategies, for example in relation to remove 
stock reduction and conversions. 

 
Additionally, we will put in place: 

 
• A   Resident   Involvement   Compact   written   in   conjunction   with 

residents. 
• A Resident Involvement Strategy that sets out how residents will be 

involved in the development of plans and in the execution of works. 
•             A regular newsletter that has service users on its editorial panel. 
• A  core  group  of  informed  residents  who  are  active  within  the 

organisation. 
•             A staff resource to facilitate and co-ordinate resident involvement. 

 
Our strategic objective is to ensure tenants are at the heart of decisions taken 
in planning, delivering and monitoring our service, with discussions on Oxford 
Standard and neighbourhood plans being the priorities within this AMS. 

 
7.4 Resident involvement 

Objectives  
Aspirations Agree aspirational standards. 
Environment / Energy Agree environmental / Energy standards. 
Service standards Agree service standards. 
Tasks  
Aspirations Involve tenants in defining aspirational standards. 
Environment Involve tenants in defining environmental standards. 
Service standards Involve tenants in defining service standards. 
Security Involve tenants in defining base security measures and at a 

neighbourhood level 

45



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

C
om

m
issioning for 

D
elivery 

 
 
 
7.5 RESPONSIVE AND VOID PROPERTY REPAIRS 

 

 
Fundamental Service Review 

 
In 2012 a Fundamental Service Review was undertaken of Housing repairs 
and maintenance delivery. Key findings were: 

 
• 7822 properties were maintained and 25,078 repairs were undertaken 

during 2011/12 
• Each  year  approximately  350-400  voids  occur,  350  kitchens  are 

replaced, 260 bathrooms are replaced, 440 boilers are replaced and 
300 windows are replaced 

• £9m  is  spent  on  responsive  and  cyclical  housing  repairs  (£3m 
responsive, £6m planned) 

• £8-9m is allocated in the capital programme for housing maintenance 
 

Internal and External Relationships in Housing Repairs 
 

The management and fulfilment of housing repairs involves three council 
service areas directly and one indirectly, as set out in the diagram below. This 
has formed the basis for the Fundamental Service Review (FSR). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

External 
Contractors 

 
 

Corporate 
Property 

•  Stock surveys 
•  Commissioning of housing 

Capital Works 
•  Identification of properties 

requiring planned maintenance 
•  Specialist Work specifications 
•  Design, tendering and 

management of specialist 
contracts 

•  Service contracts 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HRA 
Business 

Plan 

 
 

Direct 
Services 
•  Responsive repairs 
•  Voids and clearances 
•  Design and delivery of home 

Improvements (planned) 
•  Disabled adaptations 
•  Stores management 
•  HRA non-housing 

maintenance (forecourts) 

Customer 
Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 

External 
Contractors 

 
 
 

Housing 
Leisure and 

Parks 

 
•  HRA Coordination and Planning 
•  Housing policy and standards 

 
 
 
 

The relationships between the different services use a mixture of formal and 
informal commissioning to undertake work. A brief summary of the main 
interactions is set out below: 

 
Day to day (responsive) repairs 

• Residents report repairs to the Customer Service Contact Centre, which uses 
Lagan  CRM scripting  based  on  the  tenants’  Repairs  Handbook  to  diagnose 

46



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

repairs. Repair jobs are raised via the Lagan CRM direct to Direct Service’s Job 
Costing System ‘Servitor’, along with appointing to most jobs at the time of call. 

• Follow-up jobs (from initial inspections or repairs) are programmed directly by 
Direct Services and undertaken by them or external contractors where specialist 
trades or equipment are required (e.g. scaffolding),or where contracts have been 
set up by Corporate Property (e.g. door entry systems). Any tree work or 
maintenance of vegetation is placed with Leisure and Parks to undertake. 

 
Planned repairs and improvements (i.e. to maintain the decent homes 
standard) 

• Housing stock condition records are held and maintained by Corporate Property 
using  a  computer  database  (Codeman)  which  receives  manual  data  entry 
following  on-site  surveys  and  direct  services  works.  This  is  used  to  identify 
properties requiring replacement fixtures in order to maintain the decent homes 
standard, against the agreed replacement timescales 

• Direct Services are commissioned on an annual basis to fulfil the replacement 
programme. Some additions to the programme will be included for properties 
becoming void (see below) 

• Direct  Services  are  responsible  for  the  programming  and  design  of  minor 
improvement schemes including disabled adaptations. 

• Major improvement schemes (e.g. tower block refurbishment) will be specified 
and tendered by Corporate Property directly with external contractors 

 
Voids and re-letting 

• Housing and Direct Services work closely together to act swiftly on properties 
becoming vacant. Direct Services deal with initial inspections of the property prior 
to tenancy termination, and handling key returns. They provide updated 
information on properties for advertising vacancies to Housing 

• Once vacant, Direct Services undertake any works to bring the property up to the 
local void standard. 

• Housing   carry   out   shortlisting   of   potential  tenants,   with   Direct   Services 
undertaking viewings and signing up new tenancies 

 
Future focus of Responsive Repairs 

 
The strategic objective for OCC is to deliver a value for money service that 
meets the needs of our customers and achieve continuous improvement. 
Key objectives include: 

 
• Achieve  top  quartile  performance  in  all  aspects  of  responsive 

maintenance. 
• An optimum balance of expenditure between emergency, urgent and 

routine responsive repairs having regard to good practice guidelines. 
• Support    for    economic    regeneration    by    providing    training 

opportunities for young people. 
• Operate an appointment system / balanced score card (pain and 

gain) 
 

We will: 
 

• Continue  to  analyse  the  proportion  of  emergency  repairs  to  see 
whether there are patterns that can be addressed, and set targets to 
reduce the proportion of work carried out as emergencies or urgent. 

47



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

• Consider how energy efficiency works can be incorporated into this 
process to maximise efficiency 

• Identify repair hotspots and develop strategies to address individual 
and collective issues. 

• Reduce the overall volume of responsive repairs through planned 
programmes, batched repairs and predictive analysis. 

• Attempt to reduce back-office costs by better system integration. 
• Operate a system to retrieve Schedule of Rates data to inform future 

strategies 
 

Future focus of Void repairs 
 

Our strategic objective for voids is to maximise the use of our stock.   The key 
objectives are: 

 
• To reduce the time taken to re-let properties. 
• To maintained the lettings standard consistently across our stock. 

The management of void properties requires: 

• Understanding our current and future customer profile. 
• Managing a stock of dwellings that is suitable for and adapts to this 

profile. 
• Maintaining and improving the stock to a level that our customers 

find attractive. 
• An ability to present attractive dwellings for re-let within acceptable 

timescales and costs. 
 

We are determined to turnaround voids in the most effective way and this 
means: 

 
• Effectively managing the entire void process 
• Encouraging tenants to leave their home in a good state of repair. 
• Minimising re-let works within the agreed lettings standard. 
• Use of decorating allowances. 
• Working with our service partners to improve quality against agreed 

KPIs while reducing levels of inspection. 
 

7.5 Responsive and void works 

Objectives  
Service management Focus on the end-to-end responsive repairs service. 
Improve customer 
satisfaction 

Increase the percentage of jobs completed at first appointment and 
within timescale. 

Delivering a value for 
money service 

Reducing the overall volume of responsive repairs and decrease the 
proportion of jobs undertaken as emergency or urgent.  Increase 
the proportion of work done under planned programmes. 

Reducing the cost of 
service delivery 

Simplifying the process to get the right job done at the first visit. 

Maximum use of the 
stock 

Reduce void relet times. 

Adaptations Continue to offer a very good service while achieving better value for 
money. 

Tasks  

48



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Service management Develop  the  client  role  in  monitoring  overall  service  quality, 
developing QA functions and maximising customer feedback. 

Tenant incentives Review the use of incentives to encourage tenants to leave their 
homes in good repair. 

Decorating allowances Review the operation of allowances to maximise their use, minimise 
inconsistency and protect the needs of those who need more help. 

Planned works Create additional planned maintenance packages to cover additional 
areas of work targeted at reducing responsive repairs. 

Defects Reduce the demand for responsive repairs by minimising defects in 
planned programmes and specifying components based on whole 
life costing. 

Void costs Set a target for reducing the average unit cost of voids. 
Future levels of demand Undertake a review of the adaptations service to identify future 

levels of demand and the impact of DFG funding. 
 
 
7.6 RESPONSIBILITIES 

Ownership of the AMS 

Ownership of the AMS rests with the Head of Housing and Property. 
 

The ownership must be able to demonstrate that it has participated fully in the 
development of the AMS.  Specifically it must ensure that the organisation's 
long term strategic objectives are converted into achievable plans with clear, 
measurable targets set within realistic timescales. 

 
Financial control 

 
Financial control will be in accordance with the OCC Scheme of Financial 
Delegation, in conjunction with:   Standing Orders; Procurement Policy; 
budgeting  control,  procedures  and  guidelines;  and  all  other  applicable 
policies. 

 
Risk Management 

 
This AMS shall be subject to prudent risk management principles including an 
annual review and report to the relevant Committee forum. 

 
The relevant Committee forum will also receive regular reports on related 
strategies and programmes, for example related to the delivery of the thirty 
year investment programme and retaining the decent homes target. 

 
Progress and control of the asset management programme will be monitored 
and scrutinised. Quarterly progress reports on progress are presented 
including: 

 
•           Progress against AMS targets and key performance indicators. 
•           Report of budget approvals made through delegated powers. 
•           Budget monitoring. 

 
A  two-year  external  audit  of  the  action  plan  will  enable  progress  to  be 
reviewed along with incorporation of new and emerging related initiatives. 

49



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

options to those who might benefit from moving to 
move to a more suitable home. 

4.1 Demonstrate delivery of decent homes When/By 
Data collection Ensure data is collected in a proper form capable 

of demonstrating decent homes compliance. 
J Gould 
(Completed) 

4.2 Oxford Standard When/By 
Oxford 
Standard 

Agree a standard for OCC, including affordable 
warmth and environmental criteria. 

 

M Shaw (Feb 2015) 

Modelling of 
costs 

Assess the costs of the aspirational standard to 
ensure the standard is fundable by the business 
plan. 

 

J Gould / M Shaw 
(October 2014) 

4.3 & 4.4 Regulatory requirements When/By 
 Fire risk  

   Assessments 
   & electrical  
   testing regime 
 

Review current arrangements for the rolling 
programme of testing and resultant works to 
ensure a proactive approach is maintained and 
robust escalation process for potential non- 
complaint. 

 

 
 
J Gould (April 2015) 

5.1 Portfolio management When/By 
First-cut Undertake first-cut analysis for comment. J Gould (June 15) 
5.2 Neighbourhood plans When/By 
Principle Agree that neighbourhood planning is a realistic 

approach to linking housing management, asset 
management and development. 

M Shaw (February 
2015) 

Define 
priorities 

Agree priorities for neighbourhood plans, informed 
by estate sustainability scores. 

Mgmt Team 
(June 15) 

Development Use option appraisal to identify opportunities for 
new development.  Phase 1 

M Shaw (September 
2015) 

5.3 Option appraisal When/By 
Criteria Adopt an approach to option appraisal that takes 

into account estate regeneration 
M Shaw (Feb 15) 

Scheme Apply scheme based option appraisal as required M Shaw (Sept 15) 
Land assets Complete the review of investment plans and 

consultation with tenants on environmental works, 
assess development opportunities offered by 
garage sites and under-used land. 

M Shaw (September 
2015) 

Under- 
occupancy 

Jointly prepare a strategy which offers housing  G Parsons (March 
2015) 

 a more suitable home.  
  

6.1 Stock investment planning When/By 
Investment 
plan 

Migrate data into AMS, run an investment plan and 
reconcile against earlier reports. 

J Gould (completed) 

Review 
assumptions 

Check SOR and life cycle assumptions.  Compare 
against benchmarks and against actual costs 
experienced by OCC. 

J Gould (June 2015) 

Align 
investment 
plan with 
business plan 

Review OCC' business plan in the light of 
investment requirements.  Any funding gap to be 
addressed by specific policies.  These options to 
be modelled. 

M Shaw (October 
2014) in line with 
budget 15/16 

Energy 
performance 

Complete analysis of energy data, establish 
priorities and agree energy targets and overall 
strategy.  Ensure that energy efficiency is 

      

J Gould / Debbie 
Haynes (Feb 2015) 

 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX ONE:  FOUR YEAR ACTION PLAN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
  

50



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

 voids to optimise efficiency. Consider how income 
can be evaluated to target homes most at risk of 
fuel poverty. 

 

6.2   Planned programmes When/By 
Preparing five 
year 
programme 

Prepare detailed five year planned programmes at 
a local level that demonstrate the delivery and 
sustainability of decent homes. 

J Gould (October 
2014) 

Coordination Pass the proposed planned programme to other 
staff so that corporate knowledge is shared. 

J Gould (October 
2014) 

6.3   Value for money When/By 

Benchmarking Verify that all planned programmes are delivering 
value for money. 

J Gould / G Bourton 
(September 2015) 

Maintenance 
cost analysis 

Develop a stronger understanding of the total costs 
of maintenance activity by monitoring maintenance 
costs in use for major components. 

J Gould / P 
Yerburgh (April 
2015) 

Cyclical 
programmes 

Develop the programme in more detail to include 
optimisation of energy efficiency measures, linked 
to protocols which define repair or replace 
decisions.  Plan the monitoring of these 
programmes to test that they deliver genuine value 
for money by delaying major works without 
increasing the cost of responsive repairs.  Support 
this by establishing automatic reports that can track 
responsive repairs trends by area and 
components. 

J Gould / P 
Yerburgh (April 
2015) 

Handover 
procedure 

Implement a handover procedure to ensure that 
outstanding defects are resolved by the planned 
maintenance contract and do not become 
responsive repairs. 

P Yerburgh 
(September 2015) 

Demand Analyse the spread of demand for responsive 
repairs (by area, type of works and customer 
characteristics).  Review ways in which the 
demand for small value non-urgent work might be 
better managed. 

P Yerburgh (April 
2015) 

7.1 Data management When/By 
Survey 
priorities 

Define the data items to be collected as part of pre- 
works surveys and link to the proposed delivery 
programme. 

J Gould (April 2015) 

Works data Agree the procedure for collecting works data J Gould (April 2015) 
Satisfaction Review of the approach to collecting and analysing 

data. 
J Gould (April 2015) 

Managing data Define responsible for managing the stock 
condition database and agree protocols for data 
collection and quality control. 

J Gould (April 2015) 

7.2   Asset management information systems When/By 
Implementation 
plan 

Prepare an implementation plan to migrate data 
into the SAMP and to address issues of integration 
with mainframe. 

J Gould (complete) 

Shared data 
items 

Agree attributes to be passed between the SAMP 
and mainframe 

J Gould (dependant 
on IT review) TBA 

Interfaces Agree the interface requirements between the 
SAMP and mainframe 

J Gould (dependant 
on IT review) TBA 

51



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Planned 
maintenance 

Define the requirements for managing planned 
maintenance in partnership with the contractors 
delivering the planned programme. Optimise 
energy efficiency considerations whenever 
possible and practical to do so. 

J Gould / P 
Yerburgh April 
2015) 

Asbestos Update IT systems to include all data on one 
system and ensure information is available to 
contractors.  Review asbestos management policy 

J Gould 
(June 2015) 

H&S 
monitoring 

Update IT systems to include all data on one 
system to allow comprehensive reporting on 
compliance. 

J Gould 
(June 2015) 

7.3 Service standards When/By 
Validation Introduction of checks on the satisfaction ratings 

reported by contractors on planned maintenance 
and responsive repairs. 

J Gould / P 
Yerburgh (April 15) 

Service 
process review 

Prepare an action plan for a phased review of 
repair and maintenance processes looking for 
simplification and quality gains. 

P Yerburgh (April 
2015) 

Complaints 
procedure 

Review the repair and maintenance element within 
the overall corporate complaints procedure. 

P Yerburgh (April 
2015) 

Performance 
indicators 

Review performance indicators relating to 
customer service, specifically right first time and 
resident feedback 

S Fry / P Yerburgh 
(April 2015) 

7.4 Resident involvement When/By 
Aspirations Involve tenants in defining aspirational standards. M Shaw (October 

2014) 
Environment / 
Energy 

Involve tenants in defining environmental / energy 
standards. 

M Shaw (October 
2014) 

Service 
standards 

Involve tenants in defining service standards Competed 

Security Involve tenants in defining base security measures 
and at a neighbourhood level in line with 
neighbourhood plans 

M Shaw (October 
2015) and on-going 

7.5 Responsive and void works When/By 
Service 
management 

Develop the client roll in monitoring overall service 
quality, developing QA functions and maximising 
customer feedback. 

P Yerburgh (April 
2015 

Tenant 
incentives 

Review the use of incentives to encourage tenants 
to leave their homes in good repair. 

B Graves, S Fry, K 
Lang (March 2015) 

Decorating 
allowances 

Review the operation of allowances to maximise 
their use, minimise inconsistency and protect the 
needs of those who need more help. 

B Graves, S Fry, K 
Lang (March 2015) 

Planned works Explore the potential for additional planned 
maintenance packages to cover additional areas of 
work targeted at reducing responsive repairs. 

J Gould (September 
2015) 

Defects Reduce the demand for responsive repairs by 
minimising defects in planned programmes and 
specifying components based on whole life costing. 

J Gould / P 
Yerburgh (April 
2015) 

Void costs Set a target for reducing the average unit cost of 
voids. 

Completed 

Future levels of 
demand 

Undertake a review of the adaptations service to 
identify future levels of demand and the impact of 
DFG funding. 

G Parsons (March 
2015) 

52



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

7.6  Responsibilities When/By 
Audit Periodical (every two years) external audit on the 

Action Plan to track progress, update for emerging 
and relevant initiatives and to re-prioritise as 
required 

External Asset 
Management 
Consultant (April 
2016) 

53



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
APPENDIX TWO:   DECENT HOMES 

 
A decent home, as described by government, is one that is safe, wind and weather 
tight, warm and has modern facilities.  In order for a social landlord to achieve this 
aim any individual dwelling must meet all four of the following criteria: 

 
It meets the current statutory minimum standard for housing 

 
This is now defined as having no Category 1 failure under Version 2 of the Housing 
Health and Safety Rating System 2004. 

 
It is a reasonable state of repair 

 
Dwellings that fail this criterion are those elements such as roofs, rewires, boilers etc 
that are old (i.e. their age exceeds their life cycle) and in poor condition (i.e. identified 
by the surveyor as needing replacement or a major repair). 

 
The elements listed within this criteria are sub-divided into two sections, key 
components and non-key components.  Failure of a single key component will fail the 
dwelling completely, whereby the non-key components require two or more failures 
to make the property non-decent.     Key components are elements such as roof, 
walls, windows, central heating boiler.     Non-key components include kitchen, 
bathroom and radiators. 

 
Whenever a key component fails then the property will become non-decent in that 
year.   The concurrent failure of two non-key components may occur over several 
years (e.g. a kitchen in year 1 and bathroom in year 5). 

 
It has reasonably modern facilities and services 

 
The guidance lists six points of failure and any individual dwelling must fail on three 
or more items to be deemed non-decent. The six items are: 

 
•             Kitchen more than twenty years old 
•             Inadequate space and layout of kitchen 
•             Bathroom more than thirty years old 
•             Inappropriate bathroom location 
•             Inadequate space in common areas 
•             Excessive external noise 

 
It provides a reasonable degree of thermal comfort 

 
This  criterion  requires  dwellings  to  have  both  effective  insulation  and  efficient 
heating.  The standard is low, with 50mm of roof insulation or cavity wall insulation 
being sufficient for homes with gas central heating. 

 

 
 
Decent Homes Plus (Oxford Standard) 

 
In 2005, the Government introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating System 
(HHSRS) which replaced the “fit for habitation” criteria of the DHS. The HHSRS is far 
more onerous and takes into account 29 separate factors in relation to health and 
safety in the home. 

54



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
The “plus” standard suggests more rigorous and demanding objectives which 
encompass some areas which were traditionally “non-core” decency issues. Amongst 
these are: 

 
• A much more ambitious thermal comfort criterion which is in line with Building 

Regulations in force at the time the new Standard is set 
• Accessibility standards for elderly and disabled people 
• Internal noise insulation within and between dwellings 
• Standards for the external environment (i.e. communal areas) that integrate 

Decent Homes Plus with Sustainable Communities policy. 
 
There is currently no such thing as a “standard” Decent Homes Plus policy as every 
housing provider has its own aims and objectives in bettering the basic DHS. So 
typically, providers will include things such as: 

 
a. Doing more than the DHS 
b. Doing thing faster / more frequent than the industry standard 
c. Doing non-core DHS criteria 
d. Enhancing the external environs. 
e. Providing heating and insulation improvements 
f. Providing better sound insulation 

 
The “Oxford Standard” has been developed to reflect the above. 

55



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

C
ost (£) 

 
 
 
APPENDIX THREE: 

Sustainability Appraisal model 

We recognise that care needs to be taken not to re-invest in poor performing areas at 
the expense of all others, nor should high risk re-investment occur without due 
consideration, option appraisal and piloting (on the basis that re-investment needs 
may not be the root cause of the poor performance). 

 
Our appraisal process captures the expectations of the Regulator in demonstrating: 

 
• an understanding of the value of assets including details of financial, social 

and environmental return at a detailed enough level to enable analysis of 
differing  values  of  different  stock  according  to location  or  type  (e.g.  Net 
Present Values or NPVs); 

• that an understanding of such returns underpins strategic asset decisions; 
• a proactive approach to asset management. 

 
Our framework is the starting base for this evaluation process. 

 
Re-investment will therefore be prioritised and with a bias towards those units that 
are deemed to be of low risk and high demand, as identified through the 
Sustainability Model, an operational tool that is used to assess sustainability. 

 
Re-investment Priorities 

 
Priorities will be identified through the Sustainability Model.  This will consider a 
range of inputs, including income, demand and projected costs. Properties will be 
classified as red, amber or green (RAG status): 

 
RED AMBER 

AMBER 
 
 
 

Demand 

GREEN 

 
 
 
 
The portfolio will be divided into one of three categories: 

 
1.  Red – Those properties deemed to be of high risk (i.e. requiring higher 

than average levels of re-investment (or cost) in order to maintain them in 
a good lettable condition) and/or that are in low demand (i.e. are difficult 
to let or which have an unjustifiably high void turnover rate). 

2.  Amber – Those properties that offer peripheral performance and that 
require further investigation to be reclassified as either red or green. 

3.  Green – Those properties that are in high demand and that require 
average or below average levels of re-investment. This category may 
otherwise be described as ‘core stock’. 

56



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
Re-investment is influenced by these categories as follows: 

 
1.  Red (on hold/under review) – No major expenditure permitted. To be 

maintained on an ‘essential only’ limited responsive basis, plus essential 
cyclical (e.g. statutory gas servicing). 

2.  Amber (under review) – No major expenditure permitted unless an 
options appraisal has been undertaken to assess the impact of any re- 
investment on future works requirements and the likely impact on 
demand. Otherwise to be maintained on a responsive and cyclical regime 
only. 

 
3.  Green (go ahead) – All expenditure permitted 

 
Property in Red or Amber status are to be the subject of further investigation, or 
review, through an options appraisal, until they are either re-classified or until such 
time as an alternative strategy is agreed (disposal or re-development for example). 

 
A key consideration is the aspirations of residents. 

 
The Red/Amber/Green status will be determined by plotting the re-investment 
required (cost) for the proposed projects against demand. For the portfolio as a 
whole the results of this exercise can be plotted to identify the clusters of each status 
as illustrated below: 

 
The assessment of cost is made with direct reference to the Asset Management 
Database and associated reports. This will include the exceptional expenditure 
requirements to non-traditional dwelling structures for example. 

 
Demand will be assessed with reference to housing management perception, 
informed by void turnover rates and associated performance indicators. Detailed 
options studies will take account of additional information such as new scheme 
Housing Quality Indicators. 

 
We believe that paying attention to the views of residents will assist with improving 
satisfaction with the service as a whole. 

57



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Area based Sustainability Plan (for more  than one property e.g. estates I 
areas etc.): 

58



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Sustainability Plan – (Address / Area) Date (month & year) 

 

 
Property details: 
Number – total number of units (inc. supported/ sheltered) 
Type – State if properties are mainly 2/ 3 bed, Terraced/flats, non traditional form of 
construction 
Supported/ Sheltered – how many scheme’s, No. of units, client group 
Sizes – Breakdown of no. of 1beds , 2beds etc. 
Balance –how many units are new build & rehabs 
Local Environment – wider environment considerations including bio diversity, risk 
exposure, overheating, contaminated land etc. 
Flood Risk - Any properties found to be at risk of flooding should be assessed for the 
relative benefits of: 
Resilience measures – permanent internal works to significantly reduce repair costs 
and recovery periods in future events (potentially costly – so best undertaken during 
flood repairs or other refurbishment) 
Resistance measures – fitted or demountable defenses to keep the water out. 
(These can require annual maintenance and / or 10-20yr renewal ) 
Planned response – Council action when floods occur 
Communal defenses – on nearby land to protect groups of houses 

 
Return on Asset 
Cost to maintain & invested – v- contribution to housing stock 

 
Traffic light assessment 
Assess the overall condition of the stock using the following guidance. 
GREEN – Properties in good condition.  High demand 
AMBER – Properties need improvement. Low demand 
RED – Properties in poor condition. No current demand or hard to let. 

 
Example. Amber for property condition & Green for demand 
Photo’s 
Please include photo’s that give a perspective of the stock 

59



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Neighbourhood information: 

 
Wards / Estates / Neighbourhoods 
Tenure balance: 
Owner occupied % LA % RSL % Private rented % 
Demographic profiles (and future expected profile) 
Match to stock profile leading to gap analysis 
Schools: Example; Good choice of primary & Secondary schools. 
Transport links: Example; Good bus links into city centre 
Crime: Example; Poor reputation 
House prices: Example; Lower end of the market. Include approximate price. 
Employment: Example; - Universities & city centre 

 
Introduction 
Provide a very brief flavour of the area; 
Is the stock generally pepper potted 
Is the area characterised by terraced streets/ Victorian houses converted into flats/ 
new build 
Low income households 
BME composition 
New emerging communities 

 
Key issues 
What are the key issues for the community 
E.g. tackling crime, environmental concerns 
What is the Housing Needs Survey showing for the area 

 
Our Status 

 

How would you describe our role in the area? Are we ‘participants’ ‘contributors’ 
‘influencers’ or ‘leaders’ in delivering neighbourhood services and regeneration? 

 

Investment / regeneration status 
 

Is the area part of a renewal area? 
 

Is a Local Area Plan or a development framework in place? 
 

If so mention which one and who the lead organisations are. 

Briefly state what the key initiatives are? 

60



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Weaknesses/ Opportunities: 

 
Consider the our role in the area and opportunities for us to explore in the following 
areas: 

 
Planned Works 
State planned investment for next 3 years 
Additional work required 

 

 
 
Development 
State any planned Development work 
Regeneration 
Our initiatives in place 
Opportunities for to explore 

 
Key Recommendations 
Outline your key recommendations for the area 

 
Detailed Property Appraisals for “Red” Indicator Properties 

 
Property appraisals will be undertaken on particularly high maintenance individual 
units that have red indicators but appear within areas that are otherwise generally no 
concern. They will also be undertaken whenever a property presents with 
exceptionally high current relet cost. This will ensure that all red indicator properties 
are assessed before any spending decision is made. The objective of the appraisal 
exercise is to ensure that we are able to let the property and thereby continue to 
generate satisfactory levels of rental income. At the same time, we need to be 
satisfied that we can maintain the property at a reasonable cost while tenanted. The 
appraisals will be undertaken by considering the following factors and performance 
indicators: 

 
1)  Disrepair 

Identify the disrepair issues at that property 
 

2)  Demand for that property type 
Information to assess this will be obtained from our own waiting list information and 
demand trends obtained from the local authority. 

 
3)  Property suitability 

The layout, internal features and external facilities of the property will be assessed to 
determine suitability, particularly in regard to the client Association. 

 
4)  Condition of adjacent properties 

Adjacent properties will be assessed to determine their use and their condition. 
 

5)  Strategic importance 
The relative importance of the property to the stock holding is assessed. The local 
authority’s local strategy for the area is considered. 

 
6)  Opportunity cost 

All of the risks associated with not carrying out the work are identified. 

61



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

Options 

 
 
 
 
In the light of information obtained in respect of the factors above, a judgement is 
made as to which options would deliver the best result for the organisation. 

 
a)  For demand issues: 

• Use of marketing measures 
• Regeneration section to seek funding opportunities / lobby local authorities to 

make environmental improvements etc. 
 

b)  For property issues: 
• If caused by failure in DHS state when the work will be done to address the 

failure 
 

c) General issues: 
• Carry out the required repairs 
• Carry out a modified list of work 
• Carry out improvements 

 
d) Severe issues: 

• Transfer the property to another landlord 
• Disposal on the open market 
• Do not repair but keep vacant 

 
A discounted cash flow analysis will be undertaken before any decision is made to 
sell. 

 
Following the above a clear analysis and outcome can be shown in order to 
determine the most viable long-term option. Irrespective of how long the evaluation 
process takes and to implement the ultimate decision, all works that relate to 
compliance with health and safety matters shall remain in place. 

62



 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 
 
APPENDIX FOUR: 

 
Fuel Poverty: a framework for future action - DECC, July 2013 

 
The new indicator 
A new indicator of fuel poverty finds a household to be fuel poor if: 
• Their income is below the poverty line (taking into account energy costs); and 
• Their energy costs are higher than is typical for their household type. 

 
It also uses a fuel poverty gap-difference between a household’s modelled bill and 
what their bill would need to be for them to no longer be fuel poor to measure the 
severity of the problem faced by fuel poor households. This gives twin indicators of 
the ‘extent’ and ‘depth’ of fuel poverty. Illustrative levels are shown in Fig 2. 

 
The aim is for higher accuracy and an increased ability to identify those who are 
suffering the most severe fuel poverty. The new Low Income High Costs (LIHC) 
indicator of fuel poverty finds 2.5 million households in England to be fuel poor in 
2010, with a total fuel poverty gap of £1 billion or £405 per household in fuel poverty 
(see Fig 1). 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fig 1:The low income high costs definition 

 
Fig 2: Using the LIHC indicator to identify the severely fuel poor 

 
 
Fuel poverty statistics now show both LIHC indicator and the previous 10 per cent 
indicator but the LIHC indicator is now the basis for the statistics. 

 
In the 2014 Consultation paper, Cutting the Cost of Keeping Warm – a consultation 
to prepare for a new fuel poverty strategy for England; an overview of what forms fuel 
poverty is provided (and is reproduced below): 

63



-54  

 

 

 
 
 

What is fuel poverty? 
Households in fuelpoverty face both lower 
incomes and higher energy needs compared to 

*l)epartmeflt 
of Energy a 

typical households. 
 

 

 

TypicalEnglish 
household 

Climate Chang& 
 
 

 

Typical fuelpoor 
household 

 

Annualincome after tax and housing costs 
 
 
 
 

less 
than 
half 

£19,707  >  £9,330 
 
 

Annual energy needs 
 
 
 
 

Your  
more Your 

energy  than  
energy 

bill   bill 
20% 

higher 
t1,242  £1,513 

 

£1,242  <  £1,513 
 
 

Incomes are for 2012 .and are adJusted to reflect spendmg power of housoholds.E.norgy     are also for 2012 and .are thoserequ1rOO to moot a standardLs9dheating reg11oo.   
 
 

Fuelpoverty drillers 
Fuel poverty is primarily dri>len by 1) household income 2) energy prices and 3) the 
thermal efficiency of dwellings, in particular the follmMng household  and dwelling 
characteristics 
a.Law income 
b. Old dwelling (pre-1945) 
c. Larger dwelling 

 
 
 
 

 

64



-55 

Oxfml OtyCruncil .Asset Mlnagement raegy(1-busirg Portfdio)201423 Issued \krsion 

 

 

*Energy & 

 
 

d. Private rented sector 
e. 0ld/inefficient boiler (or no heating system) 
f.Non-gas heating 

 
The 2014 Consu ation paper also summarises in particular the impact and linkage of 
larger homes to fuelpoverty: 

 
 

Who are the fuel poor? 
The annual fuelpoverty statistics reveal a lot about 
the typical fuelpoor household, ncluding dwelling 
and economic condions. 

 
 
Department 
of 
Cilmate Change 

 
 
 

Mainly families Living in larger homes 
 
 
 
 

Families Couples 
with children 21 4 Semi- 

45%  detached 
31%

 

M 
Single 

 
 
 
 

Detached  Terraced 
Other  21%  37% 

adulls  8% 
25% 

 
 
 

Usually private tenure  Living in old dwellings 
 
 
 
 

•Pre-1919 •1919-1974 
•Post-1974 

 

 
Ownv. 

occuplod 
51% 

 
 
 
 
 

0 .. ... 
 
 

Information ISdra\\tl from the annualstatistics for 2012 wtlch ware plillishsd 10 June 2014 
and wtlch are avallaat www gov uk/gooJarrmenVCOI ctimsnuol.powrty.statistics 

65



-56 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

Impact of under occupation 
Where a house is under-occupied, the fuel poverty methodology assumes that only a 
proportion – approximately half – of the dwelling will be heated so is less likely to be 
classified as fuel poor. 

 
Fuel Poverty Marginal Alleviation Cost Curve (FP-MACC) 

Policies  that  improve  the  thermal  efficiency  of  dwellings  tend  to  be  more  cost 
effective  for  addressing  fuel  poverty  than  those  subsidising  energy  costs  or 
increasing incomes. The analysis shows that there is significant potential for cost- 
effective measures to support the fuel poor. This is built upon by the FP-MACC which 
indicates: 

 
• Potential for low-cost loft and cavity-wall insulation (CWI) and heating measures. 
• Potential for supporting fuel poor households through renewable heat particularly 
off the gas grid. 
• Energy bill rebates only have a positive impact on a household in the year in which 
the rebate is paid. 

 
Vulnerable households 

A number of health conditions – including cardiovascular and respiratory diseases 
are caused or exacerbated by living in cold conditions. The fuel poverty methodology 
takes some account of the vulnerability status of households by applying a more 
generous heating regime to people who are likely to spend more time in the home 
but doesn’t consider the likelihood of increased health impacts. 

 
Quality Adjusted Life Years (QALY) 

This methodology estimates and monetises results from improving the efficiency of 
dwellings and the resulting increase in temperatures, laying out substantial health- 
related costs associated with cold homes. Examples of common energy efficiency 
measures below: 

 
 
Future Government Policies 
These will prioritise households suffering from the most severe problems, support 
priority households through cost-effective policies and ensure that vulnerable fuel 
poor households are prioritised. These will include: 

 

 
 
Building energy efficiency/heating source related 

• Green Deal 
• ECO 1) Carbon Saving Obligation (CSO) -delivery of measures in hard to 

treat   properties   (such   as   those   with   solid-walls)   2)   Carbon   Saving 
Communities Obligation (CSCO), insulation measures in deprived and rural 

66



-57 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

areas  3)Affordable Warmth Obligation (AW)  -basic heating  and insulation 
measures in low-income private tenure households. 

• Private rented sector (PRS). The Energy Act 2011 contains a provision that 
from April 2018 landlords will not be permitted to rent out any property under 
a minimum EPC rating (likely EPC band E), if there are no net or up-front 
costs to landlords. 

• Local Authorities – e.g. Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA) Guidance, 
first reports were due on 31 March 2013 and there was a suggestion  that Las 
produce own Affordable Warmth Strategy, consider the role that local Health 
and Well Being Boards, health partners, LA Housing Health & Safety Rating 
System (HHSRS) duties play a part. They will also evaluate the old Fuel 
Poverty Local Authority Competition. 

• The Renewable Heat Incentive (RHI) will be the key policy for promoting the 
take-up of renewable heat in the domestic sector, possibly via Green Deal 
financing. 

 
Income related 

• Warm Home Discount (WHD) – energy rebate payments continuing as £320 
million in 2015/16 for low income and vulnerable households 

• Winter Fuel Payment annually to all households containing someone over 
female state pension age. 

• Cold   Weather   Payments   provide   additional   weekly   support   to   many 
vulnerable people who have to manage on a low income- in very cold winter 
weather. 

 
Plans and policies –  health related1

 

•    Tackling health inequalities as a priority for Health and Wellbeing Boards 
•    Cold Weather Plan - the Department of Health 
•    National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) 

 
Measurements for fuel poverty 

The new fuel poverty target is likely to be established through secondary legislation 
currently reflected in the Energy Bill but there will be a requirement established in 
primary legislation, for the Secretary of State to adopt a strategy for meeting the new 
target.  Detailed proposals on the form, date and level of target will form part of the 
future consultation. 

 
The main way that the energy efficiency of a home is measured is using the Standard 
Assessment Procedure (SAP) which assesses the energy performance of buildings. 

 
Other measurements include the headcount and fuel poverty gap generated by the 
LIHC indicator and the energy efficiency of fuel poor households, the number of fuel 
poor households without insulation, those households with inefficient or no heating 
systems and the number of fuel poor households who live in EPC E, F and G rated 
properties. 

 
Conclusion: next steps 

The legislative framework set out is subject to decisions that are yet to be taken by 
Parliament, as part of its consideration of the current Energy Bill.  Then they will set 

 
 
 

1 21 See: https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/156163/9211-TSO-NHS- 
Cold- 
Weather-Plan_Accessible-main-doc.pdf.pdf 
22 For further details, see: http://www.nice.org.uk/nicemedia/live/13899/62692/62692.pdf 

67

http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/156163/9211-TSO-NHS-
http://www.nice.org.uk/nicemedia/live/13899/62692/62692.pdf


-58 

Oxford City Council Asset Management Strategy (Housing Portfolio) 2014-23 Issued Version 

 

 

 
 
 

out the final conclusions  on these proposals-  any such revisions to the fuel poverty 
strategy will be subject to public consultation. 

68



Title Risk description Opp/ threat Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status Progress % Action Owner

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Failure to meet the 
decent homes 
standard

Threat Lack of investmnent in 
current housing stock

Failure to comply 
with regulatory 
requrements

11.11.14 Stephen Clarke 3 3 2 2 Recent stock 
condition survey 
indicastes that 
current levels of 
investment sufficient 
to continue to meet 
decent homes

Ensure through the 
stock condition survey 
that programmed 
works are targeted to 
maintain compliance

Annual Open 0 Stephen Clarke

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Tenant 
dissatisfaction in 
standard and quality 
of their homes 

Threat Failure to manage 
tenant expectations 

Increased number of 
complaints 

11.11.14 Stephen Clarke 3 3 2 2 Investment 
programme prioritised 
to reflect need.  
Replacement 
programmes published 

Annual Open 0 Stephen Clarke

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Tenats increasingly 
unable to heat 
homes to required 
levels

Threat Low energy 
performance of older 
stock and increasing 
fuel costs

Tenants in fuel 
poverty 

11.11.14 Stephen Clarke 3 4 2 2 Additional investment 
in energy effciency 
measures with defined 
targets for minimum 
standards of energy 

Annual Open 0 Stephen Clarke

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Disproportionate 
expenditure on 
responsive 
maintenance

Threat Failure to invest in 
exisiting stock

increased long term 
cost of maintaining 
the housing stock

11.11.14 Stephen Clarke 3 2 2 1 Current renewal 
programmes are 
not totally 
aligned with the 
outputs from the 

Renewal programmes 
adjusted to align with 
stock condition survy 
outputs

1.4.15 Open 0 Stephen Clarke

Asset Management Strategy - Risk register

Date Raised Owner Gross Current Residual Comments Controls

69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 

 
 
 
 
Initial Equalities Impact Assessment screening form
 
Prior to making the decision, the Council’s decision makers considered the following:
guide to decision making under the Equality Act 2010
 
The Council is a public authority.  All public authorities when exercising public functions are 
caught by the Equality Act 2010 which became law in December 2011.  In making any 
decisions and proposals, the Council 
have due regard to the 9protected characteristics defined under the Act.  These protected 
characteristics are: age, disability, race, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, religion or belief, sex
 
The decision maker(s) must specifically consider those protected by the above 
characteristics: 
(a) To seek to ensure equality of treatment towards service users and employees;
(b) To identify the potential impact of the proposal or decision upon them.  
 
The Council will also ask thatofficers 

(A) The policy, strategy or spending decisions
/ or the welfare of children

(B) The proposed policy / service is likely to have any significant impact on mental 
wellbeing / community resilience (staff or residents

 
If the Council fails to give ‘due regard’, the Council is likely to face a Court challenge.  This
will either be through a judicial review of its decision making, the decision may be quashed 
and/or returned for it to have to be made again, which can be costly and time
diversion for the Council. When considering ‘due regard’, decision makers 
following principles: 

 
1. The decision maker is responsible for identifying whether there is an issue and 

discharging it.  The threshold for one of the duties to be triggered is low and will be 
triggered where there is any issue which needs at least to be addressed. 

2. The duties arise before
ongoing.  They require 
conscientiousness, rigour and an open mind.  The duty is similar to an open 
consultation process. 

3. The decision maker must be 
4. The impact of the proposal or decision must be 

amount of regard due will depend on the individual circumstances of each case.  The 
greater the potential impact, the greater the regard.

5. Get your facts straight first!
or those advising it make a fundamental error of fact (e.g. because of failing to 
properly inform yourself about the impact of a particular decision). 

6. What does ‘due regard’ entail? 
a. Collection and consideration of data and information; 
b. Ensuring data is

discrimination/ensure equality of opportunity; 
c. Proper appreciation of the extent, nature and duration of the proposal or 

decision. 

Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment screening form 

Prior to making the decision, the Council’s decision makers considered the following:
guide to decision making under the Equality Act 2010:  

The Council is a public authority.  All public authorities when exercising public functions are 
caught by the Equality Act 2010 which became law in December 2011.  In making any 

ls, the Council - specifically members and officers - 
protected characteristics defined under the Act.  These protected 

age, disability, race, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
on or belief, sex, sexual orientationand marriage & civil partnership

The decision maker(s) must specifically consider those protected by the above 

o seek to ensure equality of treatment towards service users and employees;
o identify the potential impact of the proposal or decision upon them.  

The Council will also ask thatofficers specifically consider whether: 
or spending decisions could have an impact on safeguarding and 

/ or the welfare of children and vulnerable adults 
he proposed policy / service is likely to have any significant impact on mental 

wellbeing / community resilience (staff or residents) 

If the Council fails to give ‘due regard’, the Council is likely to face a Court challenge.  This
will either be through a judicial review of its decision making, the decision may be quashed 
and/or returned for it to have to be made again, which can be costly and time
diversion for the Council. When considering ‘due regard’, decision makers 

he decision maker is responsible for identifying whether there is an issue and 
The threshold for one of the duties to be triggered is low and will be 

triggered where there is any issue which needs at least to be addressed. 
before the decision or proposal is made, and not after and are 

.  They require advance consideration by the policy decision maker with 
conscientiousness, rigour and an open mind.  The duty is similar to an open 

 
he decision maker must be aware of the needs of the duty. 

impact of the proposal or decision must be properly understood
amount of regard due will depend on the individual circumstances of each case.  The 
greater the potential impact, the greater the regard. 
Get your facts straight first! There will be no due regard at all if the decision maker
or those advising it make a fundamental error of fact (e.g. because of failing to 
properly inform yourself about the impact of a particular decision).  
What does ‘due regard’ entail?  

Collection and consideration of data and information;  
nsuring data is sufficient to assess the decision/any potential 

discrimination/ensure equality of opportunity;  
roper appreciation of the extent, nature and duration of the proposal or 

 Page 1 of 4 

Prior to making the decision, the Council’s decision makers considered the following: 

The Council is a public authority.  All public authorities when exercising public functions are 
caught by the Equality Act 2010 which became law in December 2011.  In making any 

 are required to 
protected characteristics defined under the Act.  These protected 

age, disability, race, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
and marriage & civil partnership 

The decision maker(s) must specifically consider those protected by the above 

o seek to ensure equality of treatment towards service users and employees; 
o identify the potential impact of the proposal or decision upon them.   

could have an impact on safeguarding and 

he proposed policy / service is likely to have any significant impact on mental 

If the Council fails to give ‘due regard’, the Council is likely to face a Court challenge.  This 
will either be through a judicial review of its decision making, the decision may be quashed 
and/or returned for it to have to be made again, which can be costly and time-consuming 
diversion for the Council. When considering ‘due regard’, decision makers must consider the 

he decision maker is responsible for identifying whether there is an issue and 
The threshold for one of the duties to be triggered is low and will be 

triggered where there is any issue which needs at least to be addressed.  
the decision or proposal is made, and not after and are 

consideration by the policy decision maker with 
conscientiousness, rigour and an open mind.  The duty is similar to an open 

properly understood first. The 
amount of regard due will depend on the individual circumstances of each case.  The 

There will be no due regard at all if the decision maker 
or those advising it make a fundamental error of fact (e.g. because of failing to 

 

 
sufficient to assess the decision/any potential 

roper appreciation of the extent, nature and duration of the proposal or 

71



 

HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 2 of 4 

7. Responsibility for discharging can’t be delegated or sub-contracted (although an 
equality impact assessment (“EIA”)can be undertaken by officers, decision makers 
must be sufficiently aware of the outcome). 

8. Document the process of having due regard!  Keep records and make it 
transparent!  If in any doubt carry out an equality impact assessment (“EIA”), to test 
whether a policy will impact differentially or not.  Evidentially an EIA will be the best 
way of defending a legal challenge.  See hyperlink for the questions you should 
consider http://occweb/files/seealsodocs/93561/Equalities%20-
%20Initial%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20screening%20template.doc 

 
1. Within the aims and objectives of the policy or strategy which group (s) of 

people has been identified as being potentially disadvantaged by your 
proposals? What are the equality impacts?  

 

 
None 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2. In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your current or proposed 
new or changed policy, strategy, procedure, project or service to minimise or 
eliminate the adverse equality impacts?  

 
Please provide further details of the proposed actions, timetable for  
making the changes and the person(s) responsible for making the  
changes on the resultant action plan 
 
 

 

 
This is a new strategy and it does not affect current council policies or 
procedures.   It sets out the strategic management of the housing stock to 
maximise the benefit forexisting and future council tenants and will operate 
within the legal obligations to council tenants. 
 
Any major decisions arising as a result of implementing the strategy will be 
subject to consultation with tenants and separate CEB approval. 
 
The action plan within the strategy document  will be overseen by the Head of 
Housing and Property Services 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

72



 

HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 3 of 4 

3. Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed changes and 
if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale behind that decision.  

 
Please note that you are required to involve disabled people in   
decisions that impact on them 
 
 

 
As part of the development of the strategy a scrutiny panel consisting of 
members and tenants were consulted.  The results and recommendations 
from the panel are included in a separate paper to CEB. 
 
As part of the implementation of the strategy it is intended that residents 
directly affected by any actions arising from the strategy will be consulted 
individually and as a group as appropriate. 
 

 
 

4. Can the adverse impacts you identified during the initial screening be justified 
without making any adjustments to the existing or new policy, strategy, 
procedure, project or service?  
 

Please set out the basis on which you justify making no adjustments 
 

 
There are no adverse impacts identified at this stage.   
 

 
5. You are legally required to monitor and review the proposed changes after 

implementation to check they work as planned and to screen for unexpected 
equality impacts.  

 
Please provide details of how you will monitor/evaluate or review your  
proposals and when the review will take place 

 
 
 
The Asset Management Strategy sets out an approach to managing the 
housing stock into the future.  Any actions arising from the strategy will be 
subject to separate approval and assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Lead officer responsible for signing off the EqIA: 
 
Role: Stephen Clarke 
 

73



 

HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 4 of 4 

Date:   11 November 2014 
 
Note, please consider & include the following areas: 
 

• Summary of the impacts of any individual policies 

• Specific impact tests (e.g. statutory equality duties, social, regeneration and 
sustainability) 

• Consultation  

• Post implementation review plan (consider the basis for the review, objectives 
and how these will be measured, impacts and outcomes including the 
“unknown”) 

• Potential data sources (attach hyperlinks including Government impact 
assessments or Oxfordshire data observatory information where relevant) 

 

74



 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                                            
 
To: Housing Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date: 10 December 2014              

 
Report of: Head of Housing  
 
Title of Report: Older People’s Housing Review  
 

 
Summary 

 
Purpose of report:  To update the Panel in regard to the review of older 
persons housing. 
          
Key decision No  
 
Executive lead member: Cllr Seamons 
 
Report author: Allison Dalton 
 
Policy Framework: Meeting Housing Need 
 

 
Appendices: 

1) Project Brief 
2) Summary of Research Documents 
3) Survey Form v1 

 

1. The purpose of the review is to collate information about housing for older 
people to; 
1.1. Understand the current position – How many older tenants do we 

currently house, the type of property occupied and the level of 
under-occupation  

1.2. Understand the stock condition of current housing stock for older 
people 

1.3. Understand the level of future demand – how the population is 
ageing and growing 

1.4. Understand the type of future demand – lifetime homes, designated 
housing for older people, sheltered or extra care facilities 

1.5. Develop a strategy to address the issue of under-occupation of 
Council stock 

 

75

Agenda Item 4



1.6. Develop a strategy to meet the demand in terms of the numbers and 
type of housing required 
 

2. The first steps have been to review the information already available, 
including; 
2.1. County Council Extra Care Market Position 
2.2. Oxford City Council – Older Peoples Needs Analysis 
2.3. Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
2.4. Market Assessment of Housing For Older People - Shelter and Joseph 

Rowntree Foundation April 2012 
2.5. Develop a survey for tenants and housing register applicants over 55 

years 
 

3. The next steps will include; 
3.1. Carry out the survey 
3.2. Establish the position of the other Registered Providers in the City 

 
4. Project Plan 

4.1. The project plan will be developed from the project brief over the next 
few weeks 
 

5. Final Report 
5.1. This is due in March 2015 

 
 

 
Name and contact details of author:- 
Allison Dalton 
Housing Project Coordinator 
Housing and Property Services 
Tel:  01865 252801 e-mail:  adalton@oxford.gov.uk 
 
 

List of background papers:  
 
Version number: 1 

76



 

Project Brief 
 

Project Title: 

 

 Older Peoples Housing Review 

Project Ref:  NA 

Project Size:  Strategic Project 

Date: 

 

 31 October 2014 

Sponsor: 

 

 Stephen Clarke 

Project Manager: 

 

 Allison Dalton 

Version No:  0.1 

 

Approvals: 

 

 1. None 

2.  

Distribution:  

 

 1. Stephen Clarke 
2. Housing Strategy Delivery Group 

 

 
ICT Project Ref   

ICT Project Manager:   

ICT Technical Lead: 

 

  

   

 

77



Older Persons Housing Review 
Project Brief 

$002o3uy2.doc  Page 2 of 5 

 

Project Brief 
1 Background   

The Council recognises that one of the key demographic changes to affect the demand for all 
services is the ageing population. The UK population is ageing and is projected to continue 
ageing over the next few decades with the fastest population increases in the numbers of those 
aged 85 and over. Research indicates that a key driver for change in the housing market is 
expected to be the growth in population of older persons. In Oxford this sector will increase from  
 
Meeting the needs of older and vulnerable households is a key priority for the current housing 
strategy, and also a key action with the Housing & Property Service plan. 
 
Age alone is no longer a good indicator of people’s needs or income and so cannot be a sensible 
determinant for access to housing, services or benefits. In addition, with finite resources available 
providers need to beware of providing services that meet certain quality standards alone and 
without reference to the importance of these dimensions to individuals. Concentrating solely on 
quality may limit the capacity of services to respond flexibly to individual requirements. 
 
In 2006 the Council carried out a review of the quality of sheltered housing. The review identified 
that a number of schemes were not fit for purpose and undertook a programme of refurbishment 
and remodelling. The review also identified those sites that were unfit and that offered 
redevelopment opportunities both for the re-provision of modern sheltered housing or new 
general needs homes. Tenants of sheltered schemes also completed a survey about their 
homes. 
 
More recently the Council has carried out a review of some of the more social needs of older 
people, including access to services and information, wellbeing and tackling isolation.  
 
In addition to these two pieces of work, Oxfordshire County Council have developed a report to 
address the housing needs of the ageing population by identifying the actual number of extra 
care units required in various districts over a period of time. The Market Position Statement is 
county wide and also identifies other models for service provision including enabling people to 
remain in their own homes. 

2 Project Definition 

2.1 Project Objectives 

2.1.1 Complete an options appraisal of the Council’s sheltered stock 

2.1.2 Understand access to housing related support and advice services for older people    

2.1.3 Assess the level of under occupation and demand for sheltered accommodation 

2.1.4 Identify options for future provision including the County Council provision of Extra 
Care housing 

2.1.5 Agree an action plan to develop policy options and housing strategy for older people 

2.2 Project Deliverables 

2.2.1 Status report of under occupancy of Council stock 

2.2.2 Survey of under occupiers – aspiration type survey and analysis report 

2.2.3 Survey for tenants of sheltered housing – aspiration type survey and analysis report 

2.2.4 Stock condition appraisal and options report for sheltered housing stock 
 
 

78



Older Persons Housing Review 
Project Brief 

$002o3uy2.doc  Page 3 of 5 

2.2.5 Paper to detail options for housing related support and advice services for older people 

2.2.6 Options report and action plan to deliver a Housing Strategy for Older People and a 
policy framework 

2.3 Project Benefits 

2.3.1 Understanding the under occupancy status of Council housing stock 

2.3.2 Understanding demand for older peoples or sheltered housing 

2.3.3 Options appraisal for existing sheltered housing stock 

2.3.4 Action plan to deliver a Housing Strategy for Older People and a policy framework  

2.4 Project Scope and Exclusions 

This review will; 

2.4.1 Research and analyse the circumstances of existing older tenants of Oxford City 
Council  

2.4.2 Research and analyse the circumstances of all tenants currently under-occupying their 
homes 

2.4.3 Seek to identify the needs and aspirations of older tenants 

2.4.4 Consider how and where people can access housing advice specifically for older 
people 

2.4.5 Undertake a SWOT type analysis of current provision – benchmark with 2006 analysis. 
What has changed? 

2.4.6 Update the stock condition analysis of current sheltered or designated housing 
schemes 

2.4.7 Identify options for meeting needs and aspirations – service improvements, increase in 
stock provision, improved quality of stock. Identify alternative means of provision to 
sheltered – such as home ownership 

2.4.8 Analyse existing research, best practice and data related to meeting the needs of older 
people (over age 55 years) 

2.4.9 Gather evidence about the demand for ‘sheltered’ housing from current tenants, ORAH 
and external research data.  

2.4.10 Collate evidence about the demand for Extra Care Housing from consultation and 
current research. 

2.4.11 Understanding the impact of the Care Act 2014 

 

This review will not; 

2.4.12 Include a detailed assessment of non-housing services available to people such as 
personal care 

2.4.13 Include in depth analysis of fuel poverty data 

3 Constraints 
3.1.1 Time – the project is due to complete in March 2015 

3.1.2 Resources – the project is dependent on competing priorities and project demands on 
the team’s time. This includes; 

• The Affordable Homes Project which is high profile and time consuming.  

• There is a decision to be made about whether the survey form is completed in a face to 
face interview at home, or over the telephone, or by mail out. This will have an 
implication for workloads. 

• Staff resource is from within existing resources. 

3.1.3 Budget – there is no identified budget for this budget but there will be costs involved in 
the production and mail out of the survey forms.  

79



Older Persons Housing Review 
Project Brief 

$002o3uy2.doc  Page 4 of 5 

3.2 Project Approach 

 
Work Stream Actions Timescales 

Project Documents 
Prepare PID/Project plan 

Prepare PIB 

October 2014 

November 2014 

Assessment of existing 
documents & evidence base 

Analyse SHMA 

November 2014 

Analyse previous sheltered housing review 

Analyse STAR Survey 2014 

Analyse County Council Extra Care Position 
Statement Mar 2014 

Analyse OCC Older Persons Review  

Assessment of under 
occupation and aspirational 
survey 

Produce a report of how many older people 
are under occupying in OCC Stock 

December 2014 

January 2015 

Develop a survey for under occupiers 

Carryout a survey to tenants under occupying 

Carry out an options appraisal of the Councils 
sheltered housing stock 

Survey of sheltered housing 
customers 

Develop a survey for existing sheltered 
housing customers January 2015 

Carryout survey of sheltered housing tenants 

Final Report 

Prepare final report 

March 2015 
Report to HCPB 

Report to HSDG? 

Report to CEB/CMT? 

4 Outline Business Case 

4.1 Costs 

Please provide a description of the costs associated with the project. 
 

Costs Cost centre 2014/15 

Design, production, mail out 
of survey form 

EK15 £3500 

  £ 

  £ 

  £ 

Financial benefits  2013/14 

[Name of saving]  £ 

[Name of saving]  £ 

Net savings  

(Benefits minus costs) 

2010/11 2013/14 

  £0.00 

4.2 Other resource requirements 

List all other non-financial resource requirements such as staff time (quantified in hours/days) 

80



Older Persons Housing Review 
Project Brief 

$002o3uy2.doc  Page 5 of 5 

4.3 Risks and uncertainties 

Describe the areas or sources of risk that may impact on the project. 

Risk/uncertainty Mitigation 

  
  

  

 

81



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING FOR OLDER PEOPLE – SUMMARY OF RESEARCH 

 
1. Ox County Council - ECH Market Position Statement 2014 

• Census data from March 2011, tells us that one in six people (16%, 103,742 people) of an 
estimated 653,800 people living in Oxfordshire were aged 65 and over. 

• The very oldest people have the highest needs. 

• People with a disability are living longer, often with more complex needs. 

• There is a current demand for 2,700 Extra Care Housing units and this will increase to a 
need for 4,500 flats (a 60% increase) by 2026 

• Estimated 55 Extra Care Housing flats per 1,000 people aged 75 and over is being used as 
the demand ratio within Oxfordshire and to inform local plans 

• Want to develop an additional 523 Extra Care Housing places available by the end of March 
2015, bringing the total number of places to 930. 

• Unallocated capital grant budget of almost £6m to help affordable housing providers develop 
new Extra Care Housing capacity. 

• Funding levels will continue to come under pressure in future years. 

• Keen to discuss new sites for Extra Care Housing with various housing providers and can 
offer both capital and revenue resources to support appropriate developments 

 
2. Oxford City Council - Older Peoples Needs Analysis 2013 

This study is based on different age groups to other reports which skews figures slightly when 
making comparisons. This is a more general look at all needs not just housing and applies to the 
population of Oxford city.  
Housing Needs 

• In Oxford city, approximately 66% of those over 50 living in households own their own 
homes. 

• 15,548 of the 50+ population lived in their own home at the time of the 2011 census: 
- Over half of these (51%) were in the youngest, 50 to 64, age range  
- a further 5,635 (24%) of the 50+ population lived in rented social housing 
- 2,260 (10%) in privately rented accommodation. 

 

 
 

Housing Tenure – Population Aged 50+: Oxford Source: Census 2011, (Table DC4201EW) 

 
Oxford’s Housing Register 

• At the time of reporting (17/09/13), a quarter of all housing register applicants in Oxford were 
aged 50 years plus. This figure does not differentiate between transfer and general register 
applicants. 

• Data provided (17/09/13) confirms that a quarter of all housing register applicants were aged 
50 or over.  Of those: 

o 828 (67%) were living alone 
o 220 (18%) are of BME ethnicity 
o 125 (10%) had dependent children 
o 119 (10%) were currently living in overcrowded accommodation 

  
Total 

 
Owned 

Rented: 
Social 

Rented: 
Private 

Aged50-64 12,264 7,965 2,774 1,525 
Aged65-74 5115 3,472 1,319 324 
Aged75-84 4,038 2,795 1,009 234 
Aged85+ 2,026 1,316 533 177 

All Aged50+ 23,443 15,548 5,635 2,260 
 

83



o 246 (20%) had special requirements due to mobility issues (however the majority of 
these (167) just needed level access throughout the property (Level 1) rather than 
more involved adaptations. (Levels 2 to 4). 
Source: Oxford City Council, Housing Services (17/09/13) 

 

• There is less demand for sheltered accommodation than general needs accommodation. In 
2013/14 we housed 58 households in sheltered accommodation (council and housing 
association owned). Of those 37 (64%) were in band 5 on the housing register. When it 
comes to general needs housing we do not normally house applicants in band 5. 

 
Housing for homeless aged 50+ 
According to Oxford City Council’s housing register, 6 homeless applicants, aged 50+ were 
rehomed between 2011 and 2013. This represents 3% of all accepted applicants in that period.    
 
Homelessness among the 50+ population of Oxford 
There are 12 people aged 50+ who are known to be sleeping rough in Oxford. 

o 9 aged 50-59 
o 3 aged 60-69 

 
There are 55 people aged 50+ using hostel or similar accommodation bec; 

o 38 aged 50-59 
o 15 aged 60-69 
o 2 aged 70+ 

 
3. Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2014 (SHMA) - Older People 
The report reiterates the data of an increasing older population and includes some key observations 
around tenure and health. 
 
The table below shows data from the 2011 Census about the number of pensioner households 
(defined as people aged 65 and over regardless of sex) compared with other areas. The data shows 
in 2011; 

• Around 21% of households 65+ were comprised entirely of pensioners, the same as the 
regional figure and slightly lower than the national average.  

• Of the total number of pensioner households some 56% are single person households. 

• The   data  shows  that  77% of pensioner  households  live  in  owner-occupied 
accommodation 

• They are also slightly more likely than other households to be in the social rented sector.  

• The proportion of pensioner households living in the private rented sector is 4% compared 
with 21% of all households in the County 

 

 
 
Table70: Pensionerhouseholds(Census2011) Source:Census(2011) 

 

Pensionerhouseholds                         Oxfordshire            SouthEast               England 

Singlepensioner                                          29,852                  2,725,596                 449,969 

2 ormorepensioners                                   23,635                  1,851,180                 329,263 

Allhouseholds                                            258,855                22,063,368              3,555,463 

Singlepensioner                                          11.5%                     12.4%                     12.7% 

2 ormorepensioners                                    9.1%                       8.4%                       9.3% 

Allhouseholds                                             100.0%                   100.0%                   100.0% 

Total%pensioneronly                                20.7%                     20.7%                     21.9% 

 

84



• Single pensioners have a much lower level of owner-occupation than larger pensioner 
households – this group also has a much higher proportion living in the social rented sector 
(and relatively more in private rented accommodation). 

 

• It is likely that the number of single person households will increase and so this would 
suggest (if occupancy patterns remain the same) that there will be a notable demand for 
affordable housing from the ageing population. 

 

Pensionerhouseholds          Oxfordshire           SouthEast               England 

Owner-occupied                  12,786                 16,182                   28,968 

Socialrented                       1,174                   655                       1,829 

Privaterented                      822                     431                       1,253 

Alltenures                           14,782                17,268                   32,050 

Pensionerhouseholdswithoccupancyratingof+2 ormorebytenure - Source:2011Census 

 

• The table above gives the number of pensioner households who had an occupancy rating of 
+2 or more in each of three broad tenure groups in 2011. Whilst the majority of older person 
households with an occupancy rating of +2 or more were in the owner-occupied sector, there 
were around 1,800 properties in the social rented sector occupied by pensioner only 
households with an occupancy rating of +2 or more. 
 

• Older households in the private sector will have built up equity in their existing homes and 
may be able to afford a larger home than they need and so under-occupy housing. Some 
may look to downsize to release equity from homes to support their retirement (or may move 
away from the area); however many older households retain family housing with space to 
allow friends and relatives to come to stay. 
 

 
4. Health Issues 

Given the ageing population and higher levels of disability and health problems amongst older 
people there is likely to be an increased requirement for specialist housing options.  
 
 

 
Table 72:Estimated population change for range of health issues (2011 to 2031) 

Source: Data from POPPI and demographic projections 

 
5. Current supply of specialist housing for older people 

Source: Housing LIN 

 

 

Typeofillness/disability 
2011 2031 Change %increase 

Oxford 

Dementia 1,284 1,877 593 46.2% 

Mobilityproblems 3,248 4,638 1,390 42.8% 

Oxfordshire 

Dementia 7,521 14,864 7,343 97.6% 

Mobilityproblems 19,459 35,358 15,898 81.7% 

 

85



 
 
• Current supply of specialist housing is 133 units per 1,000 people aged 75 and over; lower 

than the national average of about 170.  
 

• To understand how many additional units might be required there are two models on the 
basis of maintaining the 133 position and also the implications of increasing this to 170. The 
analysis is based on achieving these levels in all areas by 2031. 

 

 
Source: Derived from demographic projections 

 

• Consideration should be given to the various types of provision – purpose built lifetime or 
retirement homes, sheltered housing and extra-care housing. A mix of one and two 
bedroomed housing aimed to attract ‘early retired’ older people which could be designated 
as age specific or not. Such housing could be part of the general mix of one and two 
bedroom homes but built to Lifetime Homes standards in order to attract retired older people 
looking to ‘down size’ but perhaps not wanting to live in specialist retirement housing. 
 

• The County Council work on the basis of providing around 55 units of extra-care housing per 
1,000 people aged 75 and over. 
 

• There is a much higher level of supply in the affordable sector than for market housing 
whereas the majority of older person households are owner-occupiers. 
 

6. Market Assessment of Housing For Older People  
Shelter and Joseph Rowntree Foundation April 2012 

• There is extensive data on what older people want, and a high level of agreement between 
different studies and also from our interviews for this project.We also draw on our own 
experience (including unpublished consultations with older people and with providers 
through the consultancy work of the Housing and Support Partnership.  
 

• If what older people want is not on offer, they are far less likely to be willing to move out of 
their existing home (Shelter 2010).  However, even if greater choice were to be provided, 
there are other barriers. 
 

Area 
@133per1,000 @170per1,000 

Need Supply Netneed Need Supply Netneed 

Cherwell 2,657 1,961 696 3,397 1,961 1,436 

Oxford 1,568 1,535 33 2,004 1,535 469 

SouthOxon 2,821 1,512 1,309 3,606 1,512 2,094 

VoWH 2,646 1,011 1,635 3,382 1,011 2,371 

WestOxon 2,505 614 1,891 3,202 614 2,588 

County 12,197 6,633 5,564 15,591 6,633 8,958 

 

Area Affordable Market Total 
Supply 

per1,000aged75
+ 

Cherwell 1,374 587 1,961 192 

Oxford 1186 349 1,535 185 

SouthOxon 1,023 489 1,512 132 

VoWH 531 480 1,011 96 

WestOxon 91 523 614 66 

County 4,205 2,428 6,633 133 

 

86



• From both the literature and our interviews (including with private sector developers and 
providers), most older people want as a minimum: 
 

o A property that is not too small with enough living space to sit, to eat, for hobbies and 
to have friends round; 

o At least two reasonable sized bedrooms – or if not, at least an equivalent large 
enough flexible open-plan space; second (and third) bedrooms are often used for 
hobbies, as a study or dining area, for a couple to sleep separately (and not just for 
health reasons) and for family visitors (especially if family live at a distance) or for a 
carer to stay overnight; therefore many older people (especially couples) will prefer to 
have three bedrooms, especially if the living room is not large; 

o Storage space that is accessible; 
o A reasonable sized kitchen with room for dishwasher and washing machine; 
o A good size and attractive (not ‘hospital-style’) bathroom (and many will still prefer a 

bath to a shower – or want both); 
o Easy-to-manage and economical central heating system; 
o Pleasant outlook and some outside green space (private balcony or terrace, private 

garden or access to communal gardens); 
o Housing that looks nice from outside, and if there are communal areas (e.g. 

Apartment blocks) they should be welcoming, well cared for and not institutional (this 
applies especially to purpose-built older people’s housing) 

o Housing that is well-located in terms of nearby green space, public transport, shops 
and leisure facilities, in a safe and secure location and with good road and pedestrian 
access (e.g. Not up steep hills; with parking nearby). 

 

• Many older people who are thinking of moving will also choose housing that will be suitable 
as they get older (especially level access, and ground-floor or lift to upper-floor apartments).  
 

• Not all will want to plan for this in their 50s or 60s! (APPG 2011; HCA 2009).  Some will 
prefer to move again, rather than compromise too much on what they want and feel 
comfortable in.   
 

• Some of the lifetime homes factors may still be considered, even by ‘early movers’ (e.g. 
possibility of a stair-lift in the future; possibility of adding a shower) and this could be a 
selling point for new housing. 

 
7. Under Occupation in Council Stock 

 

 Total tenancies 

- 55+ 

Under-

occupied - 

55+ 

% under-

occupied 

2-bed 1093 416 38.1% 

3-bed 1732 850 49.1% 

4-bed 145 64 44.1% 

5-bed 14 7 50.0% 

6-bed 3 2 66.7% 

TOTAL 2987 1339 44.8% 

Not identifying couples who can share, families with dependent children who can 

share 

 
 

87



• Among those aged 60 and over who are under-occupying only 4% are on the REMS 
scheme. 
 

• In 2013/14 57 council tenants were housed through the REMS scheme, 35 of them 
downsized with one bedroom and 22 with two or more bedrooms. 

 
8. Council Stock for Older People 

To Follow 
 

9. Registered Provider Housing for Older People 
To Follow 
 

88



SURVEY OF OLDER PEOPLES HOUSING REQUIREMENTS 

 

ABOUT YOUR HOUSEHOLD 

1. About Your Household 

i. Single adult 

ii. Single adult with children under 16 years 

iii. Single adult with children over 16 years 

iv. Couple 

v. Couple with children under 16 years 

vi. Couple with children over 16 years 

vii. Other type of household 

2. People who stay regularly and do not normally live in your home;  weekly, monthly – once a week, more than 

once a week, once a month etc 

i. Children 

ii. Grandchildren 

iii. Friends  

iv. Family 

3. Carers who stay regularly 

i. Waking carer 

ii. Sleep in carer 

4. Have you made plans for people to move in permanently to help you 

i. Yes 

ii. No 

iii. Who 

iv. When 

ABOUT YOUR HOME 

5. Tenure information – waiting list group only 

6. Property type 

i. Floor level 

7. Rooms and sizes 

i. How many 

ii. Bathroom – Too big, about right, too small etc. 

iii. Spare/used for visitors 

8. Amenities 

i. Ground floor WC 

ii. Level access/walk in shower 

iii. Shower cubicle 

iv. Shower over bath 

9. Adaptations 

i. Stair lift 

ii. Grab rails 

iii. Ramps to front or rear access of home 

10. Heating and Hot Water Supply 

i. Electric, gas, wood, coal, oil or none 

ii. Central heating, storage heaters, gas fire, free standing room heater, open fire or none 

iii. Associated issues; 

a. Prefer alternative 89



b. Too warm 

c. Not warm enough 

d. Not warm enough in very cold weather 

e. Too expensive 

f. Difficult to adjust or control heating or appliances 

g. Don’t know how to use it properly 

h. Radiators in wrong position 

i. Cant get enough hot water at any one time 

j. Not reliable – breaks down 

11. State of Repair 

i. Satisfied, Dissatisfied etc. 

ii. Brick/stonework 

iii. Roof 

iv. Windows 

v. Plastering 

vi. Kitchen 

vii. Doors 

viii. Bathroom/Toilet 

ix. Cold/heating problems 

x. Dampness/Mould Growth 

xi. Wiring/electrics/fittings 

xii. Fencing 

12. Adaptations in the property 

i. Adaptations 

a. Downstairs WC 

b. Internal hand/grab rails 

c. Adaptations to bathroom 

d. External hand/grab rails 

e. Telecare (e.g. CO2 detectors; fall sensors) 

f. Improvements to access outside the home (e.g. Level access to 

g. the front door or ramp) 

h. Lever door handles 

i. Stair lift / vertical lift 

j. Electrically operated chair 

k. Electrically operated bed 

l. Adaptations to kitchen 

m. Introduction of downstairs 

n. sleeping arrangements 

o. Improvements to access inside the home (e.g. Door widening) 

ii. Do you or anybody in your household use a wheelchair? Which type: 

a. Electric indoor  

b. Electric indoor/outdoor  

c. Electric scooter  

d. Manual (self-propelled)  

e. Manual (pushed by someone) 

iii. Do you or anybody in your household use a walking aid? If so which type: 
90



a. Walking stick 

b. Walking frame 

iv. If you have an electric wheelchair or scooter how easy is it for you to recharge it? 

v. How do you travel? 

a. Car 

- Do you drive regularly (daily, weekly, monthly) 

- Do you rely on your car for food shopping  

- Do you rely on your car for GP or hospital visits 

b. Public transport 

- Bus 

- Taxi 

 

LIVING INDEPENDENTLY IN YOUR HOME 

13. Please tell us how you manage around your home 

i. I manage stairs with difficulty  

ii. I manage stairs with assistance  

iii. I have moved my bed downstairs  

iv. I sleep on a chair/couch  

v. I use a commode as I can't use the toilet  

vi. I use a standard bath  

vii. I use a bath with equipment  

viii. I have a bath but I can't use it  

ix. I use a shower over the bath  

x. I use a step-in shower cubicle  

xi. I use a level-access shower  

xii. I cannot get into some rooms in my home 
 

14. Activities you need help to manage 

i. Getting to bed 

ii. Dressing 

iii. Stairs 

iv. Getting washed 

v. Getting in bath 

vi. Using toilet 

vii. Preparing a meal 

viii. Managing medication 

ix. Managing medical equipment 

x. Doing laundry 

xi. Shopping heavy 

xii. Shopping light 

xiii. Cleaning home 

xiv. Cleaning windows 

xv. Garden 

xvi. Decorating 

xvii. low level maintenance 

xviii. Help with pets 

xix. Engage in social activities 
91



xx. Safety of home 

xxi. Managing finances 

15. Help from: 

i. District nurse 

ii. Gardening service 

iii. Home care provider 

iv. Other help 

v. Housing support 

vi. Day care provider 

vii. Home improve agency 

16. Information/advice on: 

i. No information or advice needed 

ii. Financial matters including claiming benefits 

iii. The different options for future housing 

iv. General help and support 

v. Home improvements 

vi. Safety and security 

vii. Leisure and social activities/clubs 

viii. Getting involved in your local community and 

ix. volunteering 

x. Healthy eating/lifestyle 

17. Source of information 

i. I don't need to get housing information, advice and support 

ii. Newspapers 

iii. Internet 

iv. Citizens Advice Bureau, Age Concern, Other Voluntary 

v. Agency 

vi. Information from family/friends 

vii. Radio 

viii. Parish council, magazine, notice board 

ix. Housing Association 

x. Council Customer Services Centres 

xi. Local libraries 

xii. Telephone advice and information service 

18. REASON FOR MOVING 

Do you plan to move home in the next five years? 

What reasons would cause you to move? 

i. Need smaller property (current property difficult to manage) 

ii. Want smaller garden 

iii. To be closer to facilities e.g. shops, doctors 

iv. To be closer to family/friends to give/receive support 

v. To be closer to family/friends for social reasons 

vi. Need housing suitable for older/disabled person 

vii. Want larger property or one that was better in some way 

viii. Cannot afford rent/mortgage payments 

ix. Want to buy a property 

92



x. To move to a better neighbourhood or more pleasant area 

xi. Want own home/live independently 

xii. Need a home with a shower rather than a bath 

xiii. I am unhappy about the crime levels in the area, or 

xiv. I am worried by behaviour of people living near me 

xv. Need a bathroom downstairs 

xvi. Marriage/to live together 

xvii. Want larger garden 

xviii. To be closer to work/new job 

xix. Forced to move 

xx. Lacking or need separate kitchen/bathroom/toilet 

xxi. This is only a temporary accommodation 

xxii. Divorce/separation/family stress 

xxiii. Major disrepair of home 

xxiv. Overcrowding 

19. Which of the following tenures would you choose? 

i. Buying a property outright or with a mortgage 

ii. Shared ownership (part rent/buy) 

iii. Rent a property from a private landlord 

iv. Rent from a Housing Association 

v. Sheltered accommodation - rent 

vi. Sheltered accommodation - buy 

vii. Sheltered accommodation - part rent/buy 

viii. Extra Care Housing - rent 

ix. Extra Care Housing - buy 

x. Extra Care Housing - part rent/buy 

xi. Residential Care Home 

xii. Co-Housing 

20. What type of property would you like to move to? 

i. Property type 

a. House 

b. Bungalow 

c. Apartment (ground floor) 

d. Apartment (above ground floor) 

ii. No. bedrooms 

a. Studio/bedsit 

b. One bedroom 

c. Two bedrooms 

d. Three bedrooms 

e. Three+ bedrooms 

iii. Outlook 

a. Private small garden 

b. Private large garden 

c. Communal Garden 

d. Balcony 

iv. Locality 
93



a. Purpose built community for older people – village style 

b. Active or busy street front  

c. Quiet cul-de-sac 

d. Other 

 

v. Which area of Oxford would you like to move to? 

a. Blackbird Leys, 

b. Kidlington,  

c. Templar Road,  

d. Wolvercote,  

e. Cutteslowe,  

f. Marston,  

g. Old Marston,  

h. Northway,  

i. Osney,  

j. Botley,  

k. Horspath Rd,  

l. Lye Valley,  

m. Town Furze,  

n. Wood Farm,  

o. Cowley Airfield,  

p. Barton,  

q. Risinghurst,  

r. Quarry,  

s. Headington,  

t. Gipsy Lane,  

u. Rose Hill Estate,  

v. Littlemore,  

w. New Hinksey,  

x. Abingdon,  

y. East Oxford,  

z. Cowley,  

aa. Hockmore,  

bb. Boundary Brook,  

cc. Donnington Bridge,  

dd. Central,  

ee. Jericho,  

ff. Walton,  

gg. Grandpont 

94



HOUSING PANEL (PANEL OF THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE) 

 
Thursday 9 October 2014 

 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Sanders, Hollick and Wade. 
 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Bill Graves (Housing Services), Gary Parsons, Andrew 
Brown (Scrutiny Officer), Tanya Bandekar and Helen Bishop (Head of Customer 
Services) 
 
 
61. ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
Councillor Hollick was elected Chair. 
 
 
62. APOLOGIES 
 
Linda Hill sent her apologies. 
 
 
63. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The work programme was noted. 
 
 
64. PERFORMANCE MONITORING (HOUSING MEASURES) 
 
The following points were noted in relation to housing performance measures: 
 
HC016 – Assurances were received that there were no adverse funding 
implications as a result of slippage. 
 
CA001 – A fuller response could be provided on the causes of phase 1 slippage 
on the Barton development. 
 
NI154 – There was no reason to believe that developers were stockpiling land.  
Delays were due to the availability of materials but delivery was generally picking 
up. 
 
NI155 – Officers provided clarity about which figures related to affordable rents 
and which figures included other affordable tenures such as shared ownership. 
 
HC014 – The Panel questioned the homelessness figures. 
 
CS005 – The Panel welcomed efforts to improve the time taken to process new 
benefit claims and the introduction of a new electronic form.  The Panel received 
assurances that paper forms would remain in place for the time being. 
 
 
65. DRAFT HOUSING STRATEGY 
 95

Agenda Item 5



 

Panel Members were encouraged to contribute to the consultation, which runs 
from 22 October 2014 until 1 December 2014.   
 
The consultation questions (and the list of specific groups to be consulted with) 
will be circulated to Panel Members for their input before being finalised. 
 
The Panel agreed to review the Council’s Private Rented Sector Strategy when 
this has been developed.     
 
 
66. RENT ARREARS ANALYSIS AND PROFILES 
 
The Panel heard that Rent Arrears performance is ahead of target.  The 
collection rate has improved despite more people now managing their own 
benefits. 
 
A tracing service is being used to obtain the contact details of former tenants but 
this is not a debt collection agency. 
 
The Panel queried the rise in average arrears for phase 3 direct payment cases.  
This response was received following the meeting: 
 
The 11 cases in rent arrears is out of a total of 145 tenants that were transferred to direct 
payments in the third phase.   
 
We have had five tenants that have switched back to receiving their housing benefit as a 
credit to their rent account due to not being able to sustain payments.   
 
The reason for the overall increase in arrears was that two tenants were unable to pay 
their monthly payment at the end of the month.  The team have contacted the two tenants 
and both accounts have reduced their rent arrears to previous month’s levels as a result. 

 
The Panel heard that the City Council is on track to spend all its Discretionary 
Housing Payment money, although this was also the case at the same stage last 
year. 
 
The Panel questioned what level of support tenants receive with the process of 
arrears escalations.  Officers advised that personal contact is proactively made 
with tenants throughout the process, and agreed to provide case studies in a 
future Rent Arrears Report. 
 
 
 
67. LEASEHOLDER PAYMENT OPTIONS FOR MAJOR WORKS 
 
The Panel were satisfied that the framework set out in the report is sensible and 
fair, and fully endorse this. 
 
Members noted that there is no provision for leaseholders to pay into a sinking 
fund to cover the cost of major works.  To introduce a sinking fund now for 
existing leaseholders would involve changing the terms of all leases, while 
establishing a sinking fund for new leaseholders would create a new level of 
administration but with few benefits to start with, so there isn’t a strong case for 
doing this.  
 
 

96



 

68. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
The Panel approved the notes of the meetings held in April 2014. 
 
 
69. FUTURE MEETING DATES 
 
An additional Housing Panel meeting has been scheduled for 10 December 
2014. 
 
 
The meeting started at 5.00pm and ended at 6.20pm 
 
 

97



This page is intentionally left blank

98


	Agenda
	2 Housing Panel Work Programme
	3 Asset Management Strategy - Council housing stock
	Appendix 1_ Asset Management Strategy - FINAL, 26/11/2014 Labour Group
	Appendix 2_  Risk register Asset Management Strategy, 26/11/2014 Labour Group
	Blank Risk Register  

	Appendix 3_EqIA_ Asset Management Strategy, 26/11/2014 Labour Group

	4 Older Persons Housing Review
	OPR App 1 - PrjctBrief1.0
	OPR App 2 - Summary of Research Docs - reformatted
	OPR App 3 - Surevy Form v0.1

	5 Notes of previous meeting
	Minutes


